
      

Council Chambers at City Hall
Tuesday, April 1, 2025
7 p.m.

William E. Dollar Municipal Building
200 N. Fifth St.
Garland, Texas

 

 

 

CITY OF GARLAND
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

The Garland C ity Council extends to all visitors a sincere welcome. We value your interest in our community and your
participation in the meetings of this governing body. Visit GarlandTX.gov/Council for a full list of meeting dates.
 
The Council Chambers at Garland C ity Hall is wheelchair accessible, and AD A parking is available on State Street as well
as in the public parking garage behind C ity Hall. Persons who may need assistive listening devices or
interpretation/translation services are asked to contact the C ity Secretary's Office at 972-205-2404 as soon as possible prior
to the meeting so that we may do all we can to provide appropriate arrangements.

Garland C ity Council meetings are livestreamed and available on-demand at GarlandTX.tv. They are also broadcast on
Spectrum Channel 16, Frontier Channel 44 and AT&T Uverse Channel 99. C losed captioning is available for each in
English and Spanish.
 
NOTICE:  Pursuant to Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code, one or more members of the City Council may attend this
meeting by internet/video remote means. A quorum of the City Council, as well as the presiding officer, will be physically present at the
above identified location. Members of the public that desire to make a public comment must attend the meeting in person.
      

LEGISLATIVE PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
It is a custom and tradition of the City Council to have an invocation and recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior to
the beginning of each Regular Meeting. Members of the audience are invited but not required to participate. The
decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice. It has no bearing on matters to be considered by the
City Council and will not affect the decisions to be made during this meeting. 
 

 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor may present proclamations, recognize attendees or accomplishments, and make announcements
regarding City events or other matters of interest to citizens including but not limited to listed items. There will be
no Council discussion or votes on these matters.

Pet of the Month
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of Council, without discussion.
Council has had the opportunity to review each of these items at a previous Work Session, and approval of the
consent agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute each item. The Mayor will announce the
consent agenda and provide an opportunity for members of the audience, as well as Council, to request that any
item be removed and considered separately.

 

1. Approve the minutes of the March 18, 2025 Regular Meeting

 
 

  



2. Approve the following bids:
 

a. GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis 138kV Transmission
Line Rebuild Engineering Services

 Bid No. 0805-25

   
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. $1,407,500.00  

This request is for engineering services to design the rebuild of the GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis 138kV
Transmission Line. Services include transmission and distribution line design, field engineering, survey,
easement and permitting support. This is part of the approved GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis Transmission
Line Capacity Upgrade CIP project.

 

b. GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Construction
Services

 Bid No. 0610-25

   
Primoris T&D Services, LLC $4,726,766.13  

This request is for construction services for the replacement of the GP&L Wynn Joyce Transmission Line
poles. This is part of the approved GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement CIP project. An owner's
contingency is included for any additional services that may be required. 

 

c. GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV Transmission
Line Materials

 Bid No. 0813-25

   
Techline, Inc. $768,143.75  

This request is for materials needed for the construction of the GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV
Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV Transmission Line
CIP project.

 

d. GP&L Mesa View 345kV Transmission Line Materials  Bid No. 0815-25
   
Techline, Inc. $768,143.75  

This request is for materials needed for the construction of the GP&L Mesa View 345kV Transmission Line.
This is part of the approved GP&L Mesa View Point of Interconnection CIP project.

 

e. GP&L and TMPA Vegetation Management  Bid No. 0504-25
   
Trees, Inc. $500,500.00  

This request is for tree trimming services and vegetation management of GP&L and TMPA transmission
right-of-way.  

 

f. GP&L Fairdale to Walnut 138kV Transmission Line
Rebuild Engineering Services

 Bid No. 0817-25

   
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. $2,328,200.00  

This request is for engineering services to design the rebuild of the GP&L Fairdale to Walnut 138kV
Transmission Line. Services include transmission and distribution line design, field engineering, survey, and
construction support. This is part of the approved GP&L Fairdale to Walnut Transmission Line Capacity
Upgrade CIP project.

 
 



g. GP&L Centerville to McCree 345kV Transmission Line
Construction Services

 Bid No. 0645-25

   
Power Standard, LLC $2,500,000.00  

This request is for construction services for the rebuild of the GP&L Centerville to McCree Transmission
Line. This is part of the approved GP&L Centerville to McCree 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade CIP
project. An owner's contingency is included for any additional services that may be required.

 

h. GP&L College to Brand Road 345kV Transmission Line
Upgrade

 Bid No. 0518-25

   
Power Standard, LLC $10,538,336.56  

This request is for construction services for the rebuild of the GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV
Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV Transmission Line
Upgrade CIP project. An owner's contingency is included for any additional services that may be required.

 

3. Ordinance Adopting FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1

Approve an ordinance amending the FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget for Budget Amendment No. 1.
Council considered the proposed budget amendment at the March 17, 2025 Work Session. 

 

4. Grant Disbursement Agreement - Garland Housing Finance Corporation

Accept a $540,000 grant from the Garland Housing Finance Corporation (GHFC) to continue the Garland
Partnership Program with the City of Garland. Council considered this item at the March 17, 2025 Work
Session.

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION
Members of the audience may provide public comment in favor, in opposition or about any of the items for
individual consideration. Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a speaker card (located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers) and give it to the City Secretary in advance of the respective agenda item. Speakers are
grouped by agenda item and will be called in the order of the agenda. All comments and testimony are to be
presented from the podium. The Mayor may impose a time limit and may provide for rebuttal.

 

5. Hold public hearing(s) on the following Case(s):   

 

a. Garland Development Code (GDC) Amendment (25-04) 

Hold a public hearing to consider amendments to Chapter 2, Article 5 Use Regulations, Chapter 2,
Attachment 1 -- Land Use Matrix as it relates to Commercial Drone Delivery Hub, and Chapter 6
Definitions. 

 

6. Hold public hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):   

 

a. Consider a request by Prime Data Centers/Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr proposing an expansion
of the existing Planned Development (PD) District 23-47 for a Data Center and Electric
Substations to the northeast corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road, currently zoned
Agricultural (AG) District. The site is located at 2000 Holford Road in District 7.

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Prime Data Centers / Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr,
requesting approval of 1) an expansion of the existing Planned Development district 23-47 for Community
Office (CO) uses to include additional area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary to primarily
accommodate a change in the driveway location 2) an updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and Electric
Substations. The site is located at the Northeast Corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road. (District 7) (File
Z 24-37) The developer has requested that this item be considered at the May 6, 2025 Regular Meeting.
 

 



b. Consider a request by Tarmandeep Toor, proposing a Planned Development (PD) District &
Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Shopping Center and Fuel Pumps, Retail. The site is located
at 4151 North Garland Avenue in District 7.

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Tarmandeep Toor, requesting approval of 1) a
Change in Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for Neighborhood Services (NS) Uses and
Convenience Store Use, 2) a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, and 3) a Concept
Plan for a Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps, Retail and a Shopping Center. The site is located at 4151
North Garland Avenue. (District 7) (File Z 24-18)

 

c. Consider a request by Bobtown Enterprises Inc. and David Najafi, requesting a zoning change
from Community Office (CO) to Community Retail (CR). The site is located at 429 and 455 E
Interstate Highway 30 in District 3.

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Bobtown Enterprises Inc. and David Najafi,
requesting approval of a Change in Zoning from Community Office (CO) to Community Retail (CR). (District
3) (File Z 25-04)

 

d. Consider a request by Development Engineering Consultants, LLC, proposing an amendment to
Planned Development (PD) District 00-39 to allow a Landscape Nursery Retail Use. The site is
located near 4400 President George Bush Highway, in District 1. 

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Development Engineering Consultants, LLC,
requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 00-39 for a Landscape
Nursery Retail Use and 2) a Concept Plan for a Landscape Nursery Retail Use. The site is located at 4400
North President George Bush Highway. (District 1) (File Z 24-41)

 

CONSIDER APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS
Terms are usually staggered whereby at least half of the membership has previous experience. Members are
appointed based on qualifications.

 

7. Councilmember Dylan Hedrick

Kathleen Gardner, PhD, Senior Citizens Advisory Commission
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS
Members of the audience wishing to address issues not on the meeting agenda may have three minutes to speak.
However, according to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from discussing any item not on the
posted agenda.

 

ADJOURN
All Regular Meetings of the Garland City Council are broadcast live on CGTV, Time Warner Cable Channel 16
and Frontier FIOS TV 44. Meetings are rebroadcast at 9 a.m. and 7 p.m. Wednesdays - Sundays. Live streaming
and on-demand videos of the meetings are also available online at GarlandTX.tv. Copies of the meetings can be
purchased through the City Secretary's Office (audio CD's are $1 each and DVD's are $3 each).

 

 

NOTICE: The City Council may recess from the open session and convene in a closed executive session if the discussion of any of
the listed agenda items concerns one or more of the following matters:

1. Pending/contemplated litigation, settlement offer(s), and matters concerning privileged and unprivileged client information deemed
confidential by Rule 1.05 of the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct. Sec. 551.071, Tex. Gov't Code.

2. The purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property, if the deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on
the position of the City in negotiations with a third person. Sec. 551.072, Tex. Gov't Code.

3. A contract for a prospective gift or donation to the City, if the deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on
the position of the City in negotiations with a third person. Sec. 551.073, Tex. Gov't Code.

4. Personnel matters involving the appointment, employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissalof a public
officer or employee or to hear a complaint against an officer or employee. Sec. 551.074, Tex. Gov't Code.

5. The deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or devices. Sec. 551.076,Tex. Gov't Code.
6. Discussions or deliberations regarding commercial or financial information that the City has received from a business prospect



that the City seeks to have to locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of the City and with which the City is conducting
economic development negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect of the sort
described in this provision. Sec. 551.087, Tex. Gov't Code.

7. Discussions, deliberations, votes, or other final action on matters related to the City's competitive activity, including information
that would, if disclosed, give advantage to competitors or prospective competitors and is reasonably related to one or more of the
following categories of information:

generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those costs, capital improvement plans
for generation units, and generation unit operating characteristics and outage scheduling;
bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation, and fuel, and Electric Reliability Council of Texas bids,
prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and contracts;
risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales, other than transmission and
distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the public power utility is the sole certificated retail
provider; and
customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system load characteristics, and
electric power marketing analyses and strategies. Sec. 551.086; Tex. Gov't Code; Sec. 552.133, Tex. Gov't Code]

 
Each year, the City Council reviews and updates its goals for the Garland community and City operations. City management uses these goals to guide operational priorities, decision-
making and resource allocation.



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 1.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Title: City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
Submitted By: Jennifer Stubbs, City Secretary
Issue/Summary
Approve the minutes of the March 18, 2025 Regular Meeting

Background
N/A

Consideration / Recommendation
Approve the March 18, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes.

Attachments
March 18, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes



D R A F T

MINUTES
 

 
The City Council of the City of Garland convened in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 18, 2025, in the
Council Chambers at the William E. Dollar Municipal Building, 200 North Fifth Street, Garland, Texas, with the
following members present:

Present: Mayor Scott LeMay  
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Moore  
Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Margaret Lucht  
Council Member Kris Beard  
Council Member B.J. Williams  
Council Member Jeff Bass  
Council Member Carissa Dutton  
Council Member Dylan Hedrick  
Council Member Chris Ott  

Staff Present: City Manager Jud Rex
Deputy City Manager Mitch Bates
Assistant City Manager Andy Hesser
Assistant City Manager Crystal Owens
City Attorney Brian England
City Secretary Jennifer Stubbs
Planning Director Nabila Nur
Engineering Director Michael Polocek

 
 
        

LEG ISLAT IVE PRAYER AN D PLED G E O F ALLEG IANCE      
It is a custom and tradition of the City Council to have an invocation and recital of the Pledge of Allegiance prior
to the beginning of each Regular Meeting. Members of the audience are invited but not required to participate.
The decision to participate is strictly a matter of personal choice. It has no bearing on matters to be considered
by the City Council and will not affect the decisions to be made during this meeting. 
 

Councilmember Hedrick provided the legislative prayer and led those in attendance in reciting the Pledge of
Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
 

MAYORAL PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor may present proclamations, recognize attendees or accomplishments, and make announcements
regarding City events or other matters of interest to citizens including but not limited to listed items. There will be
no Council discussion or votes on these matters.

Proclamation for National Surveyor's Week

Mayor LeMay read the proclamation and presented it to city staff.

Salvation Army's Special Recognition for the Mayor and City Council for the Red Kettle Challenge

Mayor LeMay accepted a Special Recognition for the Red Kettle Challenge from Matt Hosek and Sgt. Bernard Tolan.

 

1



Mayor LeMay announced that Councilmember Dutton has pulled item 3, Councilmember Bass has pulled item 4, and
Item 8C has been requested for postponement by the developer. 

Councilmember Williams announced that he would have a District 4 Town Hall Meeting at the South Garland Branch
Library this Thursday at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Pro Tem Moore announced that he would have a District 3 Town Hall
Meeting at the South Garland Branch Library on the following Thursday, March 27th.
 

CONSENT AGENDA
All items under this section are recommended for approval by a single motion of Council, without discussion.
Council has had the opportunity to review each of these items at a previous Work Session, and approval of the
consent agenda authorizes the City Manager or his designee to execute each item. The Mayor will announce the
consent agenda and provide an opportunity for members of the audience, as well as Council, to request that any
item be removed and considered separately.

Councilmember Hedrick made a motion to approve the consent agenda with the exception of items 3 and 4.
Councilmember Dutton seconded the motion. All voted in favor. The motion carried. 
 

1. APPROVED   Approve the minutes of the March 4, 2025 Regular Meeting   

 

2.  Approve the following bids:
 

a. APPROVED   Generator and Switchgear for Firewheel Pump
Station Project

 Bid No. 0204-25

   
Cummins Southern Plains, LLC $3,987,039.00  

This request is for procuring a generator to replace the existing 32-year-old generator at
Firewheel Pump Station. The City of Garland is rehabilitating the existing Firewheel Pump
Station to improve the reliability of the water distribution system.

  

 

b. APPROVED   Sensus Water Meters  Bid No. 0644-25
   
Aqua-Metrics Sales Company $1,000,000.00  

This request is for the purchase of positive displacement water meters of various sizes for
stocking the Water Utilities Department, installing new water services, and replacing existing
water meters to ensure billing accuracy.

  

 

c. APPROVED   Term Contract for Serv ice Line Inspections   Bid No. 0679-25
   
Ins ituform Technologies, LLC $799,834.00  

This request is for cured in place pipelining of wastewater mains at three locations to reduce
inflow and infiltration into the main. The three locations are on Miami Drive, Longbeach Drive,
and Centerville Road. An owner's contingency is included for any additional work or materials
that may be required.

  

 

d. APPROVED   Fire Station 7 Construction  Bid No. 0277-25
   
Cerris  Builders, Inc.  $11,973,500.00  

This request is to provide construction services for the Relocation of Fire Station No. 7.

  

 

e. APPROVED   GP&L Plant Staff ing Serv ices Contract Change 
Order No. 1

 Bid No. 0497-23

   
NAES Corporation $240,000.00  

  

 

2



This request is to obtain change order No. 1 to the final renewal of Blanket Services Contract
10110 for the NAES Staffing Services Contract. A new contract is currently out for bid and this
change order will allow for uninterrupted services while a new bid is awarded. 

 

f .  APPROVED   GP&L Shiloh to Marquis Transmission Line
Construction Services

 Bid No. 0502-25

   
DD Grid, LLC $2,250,000.00  

This request is to obtain construction services for the GP&L Shiloh to Marquis 138kV
Transmission Line upgrade. This is part of the approved GP&L Shiloh to Marquis
Transmission Line Upgrade CIP project. An owner's contingency is included for any additional
materials that may be required. 

  

 

g. APPROVED   GP&L Walnut to Newman 138kV Transmission
Line Rebuild Engineering Services

 Bid No. 0744-25

   
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. $1,354,000.00  

This request is to obtain engineering services to design the rebuild of the GP&L Walnut to
Newman 138kV Transmission Line. Services include transmission and distribution line design,
field engineering, survey, easement, and permitting support. This is part of the approved
GP&L Line Capacity Increase CIP project.

  

 

h. APPROVED   Trick ling Filters Distr ibution Arms    Bid No. 0311-25
   
WesTech Engineering, Inc. $781,191.00  

This request is to procure and install the distribution arms assembly of two trickling filters.
The existing distribution arms on two trickling filters are 40 years old and corroded beyond
repair. The design and installation of distribution arms shall be performed by WesTech
Engineering, Inc. An owner's contingency is included for any additional work or materials that
may be required.

  

 

i .  APPROVED   GP&L Transmission and Substation Technical
Consult ing Serv ices Change Order No. 1 

 Bid No. 0945-24

   
Princ iple Serv ices, LLC  $2,000,000.00  

This request is to obtain change order No. 1 to purchase order 36951 issued for technical
consulting services for GP&L and TMPA Transmission and Substation operations and CIP
projects. GP&L and TMPA project activities have created a substantial increase to the number
of field and office personnel needed under this contract. This change order will apply to each
of the available renewals for these services.

  

 

j .  APPROVED   GP&L Brand Road UG Electr ic  Distr ibution  
Relocations

 Bid No. 0469-25

   
Tri-Con Services, Inc. $517,855.00  

This request is to obtain construction labor for the relocation of GP&L distribution underground
services as part of the City of Garland Brand Road Widening project.

  

 

k. APPROVED   Demolish and Replace the Golf Greens on the
Old Course

 Bid No. 0758-25

   
Greenscapes Six $1,204,500.00  

This request is to replace Firewheel Old Course golf greens. The golf greens on the Old
Course are overtaken by a variety of other grasses, which not only disrupt the playability and

  

 

3



ball roll, but have resulted in a considerable reduction of the putting green area.

 

l .  APPROVED   Greens Mowers for Firewheel Golf Park  Bid No. 0726-25
   
Professional Turf Products $279,117.75  

This request is for the purchase of one new greens mower and the replacement of four greens
mowers that have been in use for over 13 years, exceeding their expected life cycle.

  

 

3. APPROVED   GDC Amendment ORD 25-01

Approve an ordinance amending Section 2.51, Land Use Matrix, of Article 4, Chapter 2, of the
Garland Development Code and Section 2.74, Nonconforming Use or Structure Criteria, of
Article 6, Chapter 2, of the Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas;
providing a Savings Clause, providing a penalty under the provisions of Section 10.05 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas; providing a Severability Clause; and setting
an effective date.

  

 

4. APPROVED   GPS: Garland's Pathway to Success

Approval of GPS: Garland's Pathway to Success, the City Manager's work plan for aligning
City Council direction with the work of Team Garland. Council was briefed on this item at the
November 18, 2024 Work Session (verbal) and the March 17, 2025 Work Session (written).

  

 

ITEMS FOR INDIVIDUAL CONSIDERATION
Members of the audience may provide public comment in favor, in opposition or about any of the items for
individual consideration. Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a speaker card (located at the entrance to the
Council Chambers) and give it to the City Secretary in advance of the respective agenda item. Speakers are
grouped by agenda item and will be called in the order of the agenda. All comments and testimony are to be
presented from the podium. The Mayor may impose a time limit and may provide for rebuttal.

 

5. APPROVED   Proposed Development Agreement with Trilogy - BRD Acquis it ions, LLC 

Approve a proposed development agreement with Trilogy -- BRD Acquisitions, LLC, in regard
to a 178-acre residential development in the former Eastern Hills Country Club.

This item was removed from the consent agenda to be voted on separately. Mr. Hesser
provided a presentation on the proposed development agreement and stated the total
investment was valued at $150M. He stated that there was a trail connection that will connect
to the City's Trail Master Plan. He added additional details on the project and answered
questions of the Council. 

Speakers on this item: Lindsey Fiegelman, Wesley Johnson, Robin Johnson, and Kenneth
Haynes.

Mayor Pro Tem Moore made a motion to approve the item as presented. Deputy Mayor Pro
Tem Lucht seconded the motion. All voted in favor. The motion carried.

  

 

6. APPROVED   Proposed Development Agreement with Garage of America 

Approve a proposed development agreement with Garage of America in regard to an 8-
acre self-storage condo development on President George Bush Turnpike and Brand Road.

The following speakers on this item: Fred Gans, applicant, William Warburton, and Albert
Palmer.

Discussion followed. Councilmember Bass made a motion to approve the Development
Agreement with a 50% tree mitigation fee rebate. Councilmember Hedrick seconded the
motion. The vote was: Councilmember Bass, yes; Councilmember Beard, yes; Mayor Pro
Tem Moore, yes; Councilmember Williams, no; Mayor LeMay, yes; Deputy Mayor Pro Tem

  

 

4



Lucht, no, Councilmember Dutton, no; Councilmember Hedrick, yes; and Councilmember Ott,
yes. The motion carried. 

 

7.  Hold public  hearing(s) on:
 

a. APPROVED   Consider approval of an ordinance for the Levying of Assessments for the School
Street Alley Petit ion project located behind the addresses of 401, 405 and 409 
School Street  

Hold a public hearing and consider approval of an ordinance for the Levying of Assessments
for the School Street Alley Petition project located behind the addresses of 401, 405 and 409
School Street. Council considered this item at the March 3, 2025 Work Session and the March
4, 2025 Regular Meeting. 

Mr. Polocek provided a presentation and answered questions of the Council. He stated that
staff recommended approval. There was no one who wished to speak under the public
hearing. Mayor LeMay closed the public hearing. Councilmember Ott made a motion to
approve the ordinance. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Lucht seconded the motion. All voted in favor.
The motion carried.

  

 

b. APPROVED   Garland Development Code (GDC) Amendment 25-03

Hold a public hearing to consider amendments to Chapter 2, Division 5 Telecommunications
Towers and Antennas and Chapter 2, Attachment 1 -- Land Use Matrix as it relates to
Antenna, Commercial use. This GDC amendment is proposing to require a Specific Use
Provision (SUP) for Antenna, Commercial use and eliminate the current distance requirement
between Antenna, Commercial uses.

Ms. Nur stated that she brought this item back following previous Council discussions. She
provided some information about the proposed amendments. Councilmember Hedrick made a
motion to approve the item as presented. Councilmember Dutton seconded the motion. All
voted in favor. The motion carried.

  

 

8.  Hold public  hearing(s) on the following Zoning Case(s):
 

a. DENIED   Consider a request by Hugo Olvera Galindo proposing a Specif ic  Use Provis ion  
(SUP) for a Tattoo/Body Pierc ing Establishment. The s ite is  located at 977 West   
Centerv il le Road, Suite 6, in Distr ic t 5.     

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Hugo Olvera Galindo, requesting
approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Tattooing/Body Piercing Establishment Use on a
property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 76-15 and 2) a Concept Plan for a
Tattooing/Body Piercing Establishment Use. The site is located at 977 West Centerville Road,
Suite 6. (District 5) (File Z 23-38)

Ms. Nur provided a presentation on the item. She stated that staff recommended denial and
the Plan Commission recommended approval. 

Speakers on the item: Hugo Olivera, applicant, and Lindsey Fiegelman.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Lucht made a motion to deny the request. Councilmember Dutton
seconded the motion. The vote was: Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Lucht, yes, Councilmember
Dutton, yes; Councilmember Hedrick, yes; Councilmember Ott, no; Mayor LeMay, yes;
Councilmember Bass, yes; Councilmember Beard, yes; Mayor Pro Tem Moore, yes; and
Councilmember Williams, yes. The motion carried.

  

 

b. DENIED   Consider a request by Nayeb Management, LLC, proposing a Specif ic  Use 
Provis ion (SUP) for a Tattoo/Body Pierc ing Establishment. The s ite is  located at    
1350 Northwest Highway, Suite 107, in Distr ic t 5.   

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Nayeb Management, LLC,
requesting approval of 1) a Specific Use Provision for a Tattooing/Body Piercing
Establishment Use on a property zoned Planned Development (PD) District 82-59 and 2) a
Concept Plan for a Tattooing/Body Piercing Establishment Use. The site is located at 1350

  

 

5



Northwest Highway, Suite 107. (District 5) (File Z 24-29)

Ms. Nur provided a presentation on the item. She stated that staff recommended denial and
the Plan Commission recommended approval for five years. She answered questions of the
Council.

Speakers on this item: Cynthia Olalde, applicant and Priscilla Gonzalez.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Lucht made a motion to deny the request. Councilmember Bass
seconded the motion. The vote was: Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Lucht, yes, Councilmember
Dutton, no; Councilmember Hedrick, yes; Councilmember Ott, no; Mayor LeMay, yes;
Councilmember Bass, yes; Councilmember Beard, yes; Mayor Pro Tem Moore, yes; and
Councilmember Williams, yes. The motion carried.
  

c. POSTPONED
 

Consider a request by Development Engineering Consultants, LLC, proposing an
amendment to Planned Development (PD) Distr ic t 00-39 to allow a Landscape 
Nursery Retail Use. The s ite is  located near 4400 President George Bush Highway,  
in Distr ic t 1.  

Consider and take appropriate action on the application of Development Engineering
Consultants, LLC, requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD)
District 00-39 for a Landscape Nursery Retail Use and 2) a Concept Plan for a Landscape
Nursery Retail Use. The site is located at 4400 North President George Bush Highway.
(District 1) (File Z 24-41)

Mayor LeMay announced earlier in the meeting that this item would be postponed.
Councilmember Bass made a motion to postpone the request to the April 1, 2025 Regular
Meeting. Mayor Pro Tem Moore seconded the motion. All voted in favor. The motion carried.

  

 

CITIZEN COMMENTS
Members of the audience wishing to address issues not on the meeting agenda may have three minutes to
speak. However, according to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Council is prohibited from discussing any item not
on the posted agenda.

Dave Brady, Rashad Haiddar, and Lindsey Fiegelman.
 

ADJOURN
All Regular Meetings of the Garland City Council are broadcast live on CGTV, Time Warner Cable Channel 16
and Frontier FIOS TV 44. Meetings are rebroadcast at 9 a.m. and 7 p.m. Wednesdays - Sundays. Live
streaming and on-demand videos of the meetings are also available online at GarlandTX.tv. Copies of the
meetings can be purchased through the City Secretary's Office (audio CD's are $1 each and DVD's are $3
each).

Mayor LeMay adjourned the meeting at 8:57 p.m.
 

S ubmi tted  B y:   

_____________________________________________________________
S cott LeMay, Mayor

______________________________________________________________
Jenn i fe r S tubbs, C i ty  S ecre tary        

 

6



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. a.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis 138kV Transmission Line Rebuild Engineering Services
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0805-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to obtain engineering services to design the rebuild of the GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis 138kV
Transmission Line. Services include transmission and distribution line design, field engineering, survey, easement
and permitting support. This is part of the approved GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis Transmission Line Capacity
Upgrade CIP project.

Evaluation:
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. was selected as the Most Qualified firm for this project from RFQ
0832-24. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. All $1,407,500.00
   
   
 TOTAL: $1,407,500.00

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 53437

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $5,300,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $1,407,990
Proposed Balance: $3,892,010
Account #: 210-3599-3136701-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Pg. 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. b.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Construction Services
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0610-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to obtain construction services for the replacement of the GP&L Wynn Joyce Transmission Line
poles. This is part of the approved GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement CIP project. An owner's contingency is
included for any additional services that may be required. 

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Three (3) bids were received and
evaluated based on the published criteria. Primoris T&D Services, LLC received the highest evaluated score, offering
the Best Value for the City.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Primoris T&D Services, LLC All $3,718,927.14
Owner's Contingency  557,839.00
   
 TOTAL: $4,276,766.14

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 53197

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $5,415,662
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $5,050,887
Proposed Balance: $364,775
Account #: 210-3599-3137601-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

Attachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Price for Evaluation $3,718, 927.13 $3,767,270.89 $4,975,100.78

Evaluation Criteria:
Price Maximum=50 50.00 49.00 37.00
Expereince Maximum=30 30.00 22.00 30.00
Qualifications Maximum=10 10.00 5.75 10.00
Equipment Maximum=5 5.00 3.13 5.00
Safety Maximum=5 5.00 3.50 0.00
Total Maximum=100 100.00 83.38 82.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $3,718, 927.13 $3,767,270.89 $4,975,100.78
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $3,718, 927.13 $3,767,270.89 $4,975,100.78

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $3,767,270.89 398 # IonWave Notifications
LOW:      $3,718, 927.13 37 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $48,343.76 3 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Primoris T&D Services, LLC DD Grid, LLC

.

Power Standard, LLC
.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  March 4. 2025       
REQ. NO.  PR 53197       
BID NO.    0610-25         
PAGE:      1 of 1                  
BUYER:   Teresa Smith        

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. c.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV Transmission Line Materials
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0813-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is for the purchase of materials needed for the construction of the GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls
345kV Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV Transmission Line
CIP project.

Evaluation:
The transmission line materials are being provided by Techline, Inc. through an Interlocal Agreement with Lower
Colorado River Authority (LCRA) Contract 6722. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Techline, Inc. All $768,143.75
   
   
 TOTAL: $768,143.75

Basis for Award: Interlocal Agreement  
Purchase Requisition #: 53462

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $4,000,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $2,032,513
Proposed Balance: $1,967,487
Account #: 210-3599-3145501-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. d.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L Mesa View 345kV Transmission Line Materials
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0815-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is for the purchase of materials needed for the construction of the GP&L Mesa View 345kV
Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L Mesa View Point of Interconnection CIP project.

Evaluation:
The transmission line materials are being provided by Techline, Inc. through an Interlocal Agreement with Lower
Colorado River Authority (LCRA) Contract 6722.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Techline, Inc. All $502,481.98
   
   
 TOTAL: $502,481.98

Basis for Award: Interlocal Agreement  
Purchase Requisition #: 53461

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $7,000,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $3,688,070
Proposed Balance: $3,311,930
Account #: 210-3799-3181301-6051
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Substations Upgrades Program

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 284  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. e.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L and TMPA Vegetation Management
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0504-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is for tree trimming services and vegetation management of GP&L and TMPA transmission rights-of-
way. 

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Seven (7) bids were received and
evaluated based on published criteria. Clearway Industries, LLC requested to withdraw their bid, and was
therefore not evaluated. Trees, Inc. received the highest evaluated score, offering the Best Value for the City. 

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Trees, Inc. All $500,500.00
   
   
 TOTAL: $500,500.00

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 53037

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: N/A
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): N/A
Proposed Balance: N/A
Account #: Various
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Term Contract sets price but does not commit funds. Expenses will be charged to GP&L Operating and CIP
Transmission Lines Program account(s) as incurred.

Attachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: Operating Budget

CIP  

Fiscal Year: 2024-25  
Document Location: Op. - Page 251; Proposed CIP - Pages 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Bid Price for Evaluation $186,605.05 $222,271.00 $143,953.00 $107,750.00

Evaluation Criteria:
Price Maximum = 50 29.00 24.00 37.00 50.00
Safety and Training Maximum = 15 15.00 15.00 8.00 15.00
Resources Maximum = 15 15.00 15.00 15.00 5.00
Reputation Maximum = 20 20.00 20.00 13.00 0.00
Total Score: Maximum = 100 79.00 74.00 72.00 70.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $186,605.05 $222,271.00 $143,953.00 $107,750.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $186,605.05 $222,271.00 $143,953.00 $107,750.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $222,271.00 239 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $186,605.05 4 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $35,665.95 1 # Direct Contact HUBS
1 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Tree's Inc. F&F Expert Tree Service

.

TUF Industrial Texas Pipeline Services

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:       February 18, 2025
REQ. NO.       53037
BID NO.          0504-25
PAGE:            1 of 2
BUYER:         Sheldon Slover

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Bid Price for Evaluation $258,639.73 $348.001.00 $81,093.00
Withdrew Bid

Evaluation Criteria:
Price Maximum = 50 21.00 15.00
Safety and Training Maximum = 15 10.00 10.00
Resources Maximum = 15 15.00 10.00
Reputation Maximum = 20 20.00 20.00
Total Score: Maximum =100 66.00 55.00

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $258,639.73 $348,001.00
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $258,639.73 $348,001.00

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $222,271.00 239 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $186,605.05 4 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $35,665.95 1 # Direct Contact HUBS
1 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Wright Tree Service CWC Right of Way Clearway Industries

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:       February 18, 2025
REQ. NO.       53037
BID NO.          0504-25
PAGE:            2 of 2
BUYER:         Sheldon Slover

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. f.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L Fairdale to Walnut 138kV Transmission Line Rebuild Engineering Services
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0817-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to obtain engineering services to design the rebuild of the GP&L Fairdale to Walnut 138kV
Transmission Line. Services include transmission and distribution line design, field engineering, survey, and
construction support. This is part of the approved GP&L Fairdale to Walnut Transmission Line Capacity Upgrade CIP
project.

Evaluation:
Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. was selected as the Most Qualified firm for this project from RFQ
0832-24. As competitive bids were not received, a Bid Recap is not included.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. All $2,328,200.00
   
   
 TOTAL: $2,328,200.00

Basis for Award: Most Qualified  
Purchase Requisition #: 53467

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $2,500,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $2,328,200
Proposed Balance: $171,800
Account #: 210-3599-3136201-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. g.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L Centerville to McCree 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0645-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to obtain construction services for the rebuild of the GP&L Centerville to McCree Transmission Line.
This is part of the approved GP&L Centerville to McCree 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade CIP project.  An owner's
contingency is included for any additional services that may be required.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Three (3) bids were received and
evaluated based on the published criteria. Primoris T&D Services, LLC was considered non-responsive due to
submitting an incomplete bid. Power Standard, LLC received the highest evaluated score, offering the Best Value for
the City.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Power Standard, LLC All $2,151,015.50
Owner's Contingency  348,984.50
   
 TOTAL: $2,500,000.00

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 53279

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $4,778,000
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $4,270,588
Proposed Balance: $507,412
Account #: 210-3599-3145801-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Electric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

Attachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/18/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Price for Evaluation $2,151,015.50 $2,580,729.68 $2,075,918.82
Non-Responsive

Evaluation Criteria:
Pricing Maximum = 50 50.00 41.67
Experience Maximum = 30 30.00 22.00
Qualifications Maximum = 10 10.00 5.75
Equipment Maximum = 5 5.00 3.13
Safety Maximum = 5 0.00 5.00
Total Maximum = 100 95.00 77.55

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $2,151,015.50 $2,580,729.68
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $2,151,015.50 $2,580,729.68

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $2,580,729.68 401 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $2,151,015.50 37 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $429,714.18 4 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Power Standard, LLC DD Grid, LLC
.

Primoris T&D Services, LLC
.

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  March 11, 2025       
REQ. NO.  PR 53279      
BID NO.    0645-25     
PAGE:      1 of 1               
BUYER:    Teresa Smith     

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLAND
PURCHASING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 2. h.           
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade
Submitted By: Charles Chapman, GP&L Transmission

Director
Bid Number: 0518-25
Purchase Justif ication:
This request is to obtain construction services for the rebuild of the GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV
Transmission Line. This is part of the approved GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade CIP
project. An owner's contingency is included for any additional services that may be required.

Evaluation:
A request for bids was issued in accordance with Purchasing procedures. Four (4) bids were received and evaluated
based on the published criteria. Primoris T&D Services, LLC was considered non-responsive due to submitting an
incomplete bid. Power Standard, LLC received the highest evaluated score, offering the Best Value for the City.

Award Recommendation:
Vendor Item Amount

Power Standard, LLC All $9,163,770.92
Owner's Contingency  1,374,565.64
   
 TOTAL: $10,538,336.56

Basis for Award: Best Value  
Purchase Requisition #: 53085

Fiscal Impact
Total Project/Account: $13,505,901
Expended/Encumbered to Date (Including this Item): $13,165,856
Proposed Balance: $340,045
Account #: 210-3599-3144901-7111
Fund/Dept/Project Description and Comments:
Eletric CIP / GP&L Transmission Lines Program

Attachments
Bid Recap

 
Budget Type: CIP  
Fiscal Year: 2025  
Document Location: Proposed CIP - Page 278  
Budget Director Approval: Matthew Watson Approval Date: 03/20/2025
Purchasing Director Approval: Gary L. Holcomb Approval Date: 03/17/2025



                
 

  
 

I
T
E
M QTY

U
N
I
T DESCRIPTION TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL UNIT PRICE TOTAL

Price for Evaluation $9,163,770.92 $13,646,894.01 $10,623,286.40 $8,786,871.77
Non-Responsive

Evaluation Criteria:
Price Maximum=50 50.00 33.57 43.13
Experience Maximum=30 30.00 30.00 22.00
Qualifications Maximum=10 10.00 10.00 5.75
Equipment Maximum=5 5.00 5.00 3.13
Safety Maximum=5 0.00 4.50 5.00
Total Maximum=100 95.00 83.07 79.01

TOTAL GROSS PRICE $9,163,770.92 $13,646,894.01 $10,623,286.40
CASH DISCOUNT
TOTAL NET PRICE $9,163,770.92 $13,646,894.01 $10,623,286.40

F.O.B.
DELIVERY

NEXT LOW: $13,646,894.01 396 # IonWave Notifications
LOW: $9,163,770.92 37 # IonWave HUBS

SAVINGS: $4,483,123.09 3 # Direct Contact HUBS
0 # HUBS Responded

DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED DELIVERED

Power Standard, LLC Axis Power, LLC

.

DD Grid, LLC
. Primoris T&D Services, LLC

CITY OF GARLAND - BID RECAP SHEET
OPENED:  February 18, 2025       
REQ. NO.  PR 53085      
BID NO.     0518-25        
PAGE:       1 of 1             
BUYER:     Teresa Smith    

All bids submitted for the designated project are reflected on this bid tab sheet. However, the listing of a 
bid on this sheet should not be construed as a comment on the responsiveness of such bid or as any 
indication that the city accepts such bid as responsive.  The City will notify the successful bidder upon 
award of the contract and, according to the law, all bids received will be available for inspection at that 
time.

         



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 3.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Title: Ordinance Adopting FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1
Submitted By: Allyson Bell Steadman, Budget Director
Strategic Focus Area: Sound Governance and Finances
Issue/Summary
Amend the 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget to appropriate available funds for the following purposes:

1. Projects approved in last year's budget but not yet completed,
2. The rollover of open Purchase Orders from the 2023-24 Fiscal Year,
3. Expenditures not anticipated in the 2024-25 Adopted Operating Budget. 

Background
City Council reviewed a Staff Report (Exhibit A) at the March 17, 2025 Work Session to amend the 2024-25 Annual
Operating Budget. 

Consideration / Recommendation
Consideration:

1. Approve FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1 as proposed.
2. Approve portions of FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1.
3. Do not approve FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1.

Recommendation:
Option (1) - Approve an ordinance amending the FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget for Budget Amendment No. 1
as proposed. 

Attachments
Ordinance Adopting 2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1
Exhibit A - City Council Staff Report - FY 2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1



2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1 PAGE

ORDINANCE NO. XXXX

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2024-25 OPERATING
BUDGET (BUDGET AMENDMENT NO. 1), PROVIDING FOR SUPPLEMENTAL
APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS IN VARIOUS FUNDS ASSOCIATED WITH INCOMPLETE
PROJECTS, PURCHASE ORDER ENCUMBRANCES, AND EXPENDITURES NOT
ANTICIPATED; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City Council approved the 2024-25 Operating Budget
and appropriated the necessary funds out of the general revenues,
grants, and other revenues for the maintenance and operation of
various departments, activities, and improvements of the City;

WHEREAS, the City Charter provides that the City Council may
approve any amendments and supplements to the budget as deemed
necessary; and

WHEREAS, Council has reviewed and concurred with a City Council
Staff Report that establishes the need for changes to
appropriations in the in various funds associated with incomplete
projects from the 2023-24 fiscal year, purchase order encumbrances
from the 2023-24 fiscal year, and expenditures not anticipated in
the 2024-25 fiscal year;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
GARLAND, TEXAS, THAT:



2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1 PAGE

Section 1

The City Council of the City of Garland, Texas, hereby authorizes
and approves an amendment to the 2024-25 Operating Budget (Budget
Amendment No. 1) for the purposes and in the amounts as shown in
Exhibit “A” (City Council Staff Report), attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.

Section 2

The City Council of the City of Garland, Texas, hereby amends
Ordinance No. 7550, Section 1, adjusting operating appropriations
in various funds associated with incomplete projects from the 2023-
24 fiscal year, purchase order encumbrances from the 2023-24 fiscal
year, and expenditures not anticipated in the 2024-25 fiscal year,
in the amounts and for the purposes specified in Exhibit A (City
Council Staff Report), attached hereto.

Section 3

That this Ordinance shall be and become effective immediately upon
and after its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 1st day of April, 2025.

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS

____________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

_____________________________
City Secretary



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Work Session Work Session Item .        
Meeting Date: 03/17/2025  
Title: FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1
Submitted By: Allyson Bell Steadman, Budget Director
Strategic Focus Area: Sound Governance and Finances
Issue/Summary
Amend the 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget to appropriate available funds for the following purposes:

1. Projects approved in last year's budget but not yet completed,
2. The rollover of open Purchase Orders from the 2023-24 Fiscal Year,
3. Expenditures not anticipated in the 2024-25 Adopted Operating Budget. 

Background
I. Carryover of 2023-24 Incomplete Projects 
 
(a)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the TIF #1 Fund for the Downtown TIF Project and Financing Plan

The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the TIF #1 Fund included $580,890 in funding for the Downtown Development
Office that was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to
increase the TIF #1 Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $580,890 to continue implementing the Downtown
TIF Project and Financing Plan. 
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact. 
 
(b)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the IT Replacement Fund for IT, Police, Library, and Electric Equipment
Replacement

The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the IT Replacement Fund included $392,350 in funding for equipment
replacements for the IT, Police, Library, and Electric Departments that was not spent or committed prior to the end
of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the IT Replacement Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $392,350 to complete the equipment purchases. 

A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only. There is no additional financial impact. 
 
( c)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the IT Project Fund for Prior Year Projects 

The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the IT Project Fund included $10,080,004 in funding for various projects that
was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the IT
Project Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $10,080,004 to complete outstanding projects. 

A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only. There is no additional financial impact. 
 
(d)   Rolled-Forward Funds in the General Fund for the Home Improvement Incentive Program
  
The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the General Fund included $64,115 in funding for the Home Improvement
Incentive Program that was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1
proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $64,115 to continue implementing
the Home Improvement Incentive Program. 
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only. There is no additional financial impact.



 
(e)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund for Alley Improvements and
Railroad Crossing Maintenance

The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund included $3,000,000 in funding
for an alley improvement package and railroad crossing maintenance that was not spent or committed prior to the
end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund's
FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $3,000,000 to complete these infrastructure improvement projects. 

A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only. There is no additional financial impact.  
 
(f)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Stormwater Management Fund for Stormwater Equipment

The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the Stormwater Management Fund includes $243,650 in funding for two
emergency response trailers, a channelizer trailer, a heavy-duty flatbed trailer, a heavy-duty dump trailer, and a work
tool attachment power grappler, that were not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget
Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Stormwater Management Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$243,650 to complete these equipment purchases. 

A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only. There is no additional financial impact.   
 
(g)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Economic Development Fund for the "Make Your Mark" Campaign
  
The FY 2024-25 Revised Budget for the Economic Development Fund included $335,726 in funding for the "Make
Your Mark" campaign that was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1
proposes to increase the Economic Development Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $335,726 to continue
the "Make Your Mark" campaign. 
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact. 
 
(h)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Equipment Replacement Fund for One (1) Police Unit and Two (2)
GP&L Units
  
The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the Equipment Replacement Fund included $118,000 in funding to replace one
(1) Police passenger van, one (1) GP&L sedan, and one (1) GP&L cargo van that was not spent or committed prior
to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Equipment Replacement Fund's FY
2024-25 operating appropriation by $118,000 to order the three (3) replacement units. 
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact. 
 
( i)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Water Util ity Fund for One (1) Additional 1-Ton Truck
  
The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the Water Utility Fund included $117,950 in funding to purchase an additional 1-
ton service truck that was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1
proposes to increase the Water Utility's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $117,950 to order the additional unit. 
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact. 
 
( j)  Rolled-Forward Funds in the Water Util ity Fund for a Risk and Resilience Assessment
  
The FY 2023-24 Revised Budget for the Water Utility Fund included $40,000 in funding to complete a Risk and
Resilience Assessment that was not spent or committed prior to the end of FY 2023-24.  Budget Amendment No. 1
proposes to increase the Water Utility's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $40,000 to complete the assessment.
  
A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact.

II. Rolled-Forward Encumbrances from Fiscal Year 2023-24 
 
When an order is placed for goods or services, a Purchase Order is issued that encumbers the budgeted funds. 
This has the effect of reserving the funds for future payment of the items covered in the Purchase Order.  Every
year on September 30, when the fiscal year ends, there are open Purchase Orders related to goods or services that
have been ordered but not yet received.  Accordingly, the funds reserved for these open Purchase Orders are still in
the year-end fund balances since the transactions are not yet completed. 



Because the purchase of these open items was authorized by Council in the previous fiscal year (2023-24), the
City's practice has been to roll these encumbrances forward into the current fiscal year (2024-25).  This has the
effect of increasing the current year's appropriation by the amount of the open Purchase Orders or encumbrances. 
The funding to cover the expenditures is available in the fund balance since payment was not made before the close
of the fiscal year. 

The projected fund balance for the current fiscal year is unaffected by the "roll forward" because it was assumed in
the 2024-25 Adopted Budget that the expenditures would be completed in the prior year.  The presence of the funds
in the fund balance is above and beyond what the Budget assumes for the 2024-25 year-end balance. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes that encumbrances totaling $13,332,300 to be rolled forward to 2024-25.  Of the
total rollover amount, $1,990,951 is related to the General Fund.  Attachment A provides a detailed listing by fund of
individual outstanding encumbrances over $25,000. 

A Budget Amendment is required due to the timing of the expenditures only.  There is no additional financial impact.

III. Expenditures Not Anticipated in the 2024-25 Adopted Operating Budget 

(1)  All Funds

(a)  Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) Increase to Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS)
Contributions
 
At the October 8, 2024, Regular Session, Council approved Ordinance 7559 adopting a 50% non-retroactive
repeating COLA for City Retirees under the TMRS pension plan. The COLA increased the City's 2025 contribution
to TMRS from 11.20% of eligible wages, as appropriated in the 2024-25 Adopted Budget, to 17.92%. A Pension Bond
issuance will be considered in June which will lower the TMRS contribution rate if approved.  The FY 2024-25
Adopted Budget included available reserves to fund the COLA and this Budget Amendment seeks to appropriate
funding for each respective fund. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase each Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation per the below,
totaling $7,809,214 Citywide, for the COLA adoption.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time
balance reserves in the respective funds and changes to support service allocations as a part of the FY 2024-25
Revised Budget.



Fund Appropriation Increase
General Fund $4,800,503
Economic Development Fund 28,522
Electric Utility Fund 1,107,220
Water Utility Fund 189,393
Wastewater Utility Fund 280,775
Sanitation Fund 241,671
Firewheel Fund 61,767
Stormwater Management Fund 56,473
Group Health Insurance Fund 46,219
Self-Insurance Fund 17,100
Information Technology Fund 284,601
Facilities Management Fund 78,861
Fleet Services Fund 84,092
Customer Service Fund 198,051
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 20,160
Housing Assistance Fund 36,540
HOME Fund 1,781
Community Development Block Grant Fund 11,184
CASA Fund 1,660
Fair Housing Fund 2,541
Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund 240,813
Culture & Recreation Grant 2,655
Public Safety Grant Fund 3,025
Community Development Rehab Fund 8,020
Downtown TIF Fund 5,587
Total $7,809,214

(2)  General Fund   
 
(a)  Library - Walmart Grant

The Library has received a $5,000 grant from Walmart for the purchase of makerspace equipment at the West
Branch Library.  

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $5,000 for
the makerspace equipment.  Funding for this request will come from grant funds, recognized as a $5,000 increase in
revenue in the General Fund.

(b)  Environmental Compliance - Disposal of Hazardous Materials

Environmental Compliance requests $6,600 to dispose of hazardous materials stored at the Warehouse.  The
materials are from various City departments and are not able to be disposed of at the Landfill.  

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $6,600 for
the disposal of hazardous materials.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time fund balance
reserves in the General Fund. 
 
(c)  Environmental Compliance - Encampment Clean-up and PPE Supplies

Environmental Compliance requests $34,715 for PPE materials, cleaning supplies, and contracted labor for the
clean-up of encampments.   

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $34,715
for encampment clean-up.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time fund balance reserves in the



General Fund. 
 
(d)  Special Events - Cinco de Mayo

Special Events requests $15,000 in additional funding to produce the Cinco de Mayo event.  The funding will provide
additional elements to the celebration.      

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $15,000
for the event.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time fund balance reserves in the General Fund. 
 
(e)  Special Events - Hand Dolly

Special Events requests $5,900 in additional funding to purchase a hand dolly for use in the event materials storage
areas in the Armory building.   The dolly will allow for the safe and efficient access to materials stored on high
shelves in the facility.      

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Recreation Performance Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $5,900 for the purchase of a hand dolly. Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time
fund balance reserves in the Recreation Performance Fund.  
 
(f)  Parks - Mowing Contracts

Parks requests $65,100 in additional funding to meet the increase in the costs of mowing contracts. In 2024, Parks
and Recreation identified 100% of the project cost. However, the contract renewal from the vendor requested a 3% to
5% increase due to inflationary pressures. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $65,100
for the increase in cost. Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time fund balance reserves in the
General Fund. 
 
(g)  Animal Services - Two (2) Temporary Veterinary Technician Positions

Animal Services requests $48,858 for the addition of one (1) full-time Veterinary Technician position. The new
Technician is required to handle increased surgeries and other medical services as the number of intakes and
surrenders to the Shelter continues to grow. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the General Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $48,858
for the new full-time Veterinary Technician. Funding for this request will come from ongoing revenue sources in the
General Fund. 
 
(3)  Other Funds  

(a)  Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - Hotel Feasibility Study

Visit Garland requests $50,000 for a hotel feasibility study to assess the viability of a proposed hotel project by
evaluating market demand, financial projections, competitive landscape, potential risks, and return on investment
(ROI).  The study will help minimize financial risks, optimize resource allocation, and provide key insights for
stakeholders, ensuring the project aligns with market needs and trends. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$50,000 to assess the feasibility of a proposed hotel project. Funding for this request will come from excess, one-
time fund balance reserves in the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund.  
 
(b)  TIF #1 Fund - Downtown Development Office Redevelopment Plan

The Downtown Development Office requests $250,000 to complete a redevelopment implementation plan.  The plan
will work in tandem with a previously approved infrastructure study to streamline Downtown Garland's vision, provide
urban design standards, direct development in the District, and protect the Historic District designation. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the TIF #1 Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $250,000
for the completion of a redevelopment implementation plan.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-
time fund balance reserves in the TIF #1 Fund. 



(c)  Narcotic Seizure Fund - SWAT Rifles and Explosive Ordinance Disposal (EOD) Technician Bomb
Suit

Police requests $50,000 to purchase replacement SWAT rifles and an Explosive Ordinance Disposal Technician
Bomb Suit in the Narcotic Seizure Fund. The purchase of SWAT rifles will replace aging rifles used by the SWAT
Precision Marksmen. The Explosive Ordinance Disposal Technician Bomb Suit will be worn by a certified EOD
Technician during training and callouts and will safeguard against the effects of explosions, such as pressure waves
and fragmentation. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Narcotic Seizure Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$50,000 for the purchase of the SWAT rifles and bomb suit.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-
time fund balance reserves in the Narcotic Seizure Fund.  
 
(d)  Sanitation Fund - Commercial Compactor  

Sanitation requests $30,053 for the purchase of a commercial compactor to be rented and utilized by commercial
customers. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Sanitation Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by $30,053
to perform the purchase of a commercial compactor.  Funding for this request will come from revenue generated
through commercial customer contracts in the Sanitation Fund. 
 
(e)  Stormwater Management Fund - Transfer to Flood Detection Devices and Automated Gates
Stormwater Capital Project

At the February 3, 2025, Regular Session, Council approved the 2025 CIP which included a transfer from the
Stormwater Management Fund of $400,000 to the Flood Detection Devices and Automated Gates CIP project. 
  
Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Stormwater Management Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $400,000 to complete the Flood Detection Devices and Automated Gates project.  Funding for this
request will come from excess, one-time fund balance reserves in the Stormwater Management Fund. 
 
(f)  Information Technology Fund - Dillon Morgan Consulting for Process Improvements

At the December 10, 2024, Regular Session, Council approved a $1.2 million contract to continue work with the
Dillon Morgan Consulting (DMC) firm on process improvements throughout the City. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Information Technology Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $1.2 million to complete the process improvements.  Funding for this request will come from one-
time transfers from the General Fund, Electric Utility Fund, Water Utility Fund, Wastewater Utility Fund, Sanitation
Fund, Stormwater Management Fund, Group Health Insurance Fund, Self Insurance Fund, Information Technology
Fund, Facilities Management Fund, Fleet Services Fund, and Customer Service Fund in the FY 2024-25 Revised
Budget.    
 
(g)  Information Technology Fund - Service Contract Costs for Council Automation, Envisio, and
Salesforce Customer Service Portal

Information Technology requests $82,333 for service contract expenses associated with Council meeting technology
improvements, the implementation of Envisio as a strategic planning software, and the creation of a Customer
Service portal within Salesforce to allow access to departmental data. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Information Technology Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $82,333 for these software licenses.  Funding for this request will come from increased ongoing
transfers from various funds in the Information Technology Fund.   
 
(h)  Information Technology Project Fund - Project Costs for Bar Coding Software for Cityworks,
Envisio, and Workday Extend

The Information Technology Project Fund requests $296,344 for the implementation of three new projects: Bar
Coding Software for Cityworks to support the Garland Water Utilities warehouse; Envisio for strategic planning; and
Workday Extend for enhanced business process functionality in the Workday Finance system. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Information Technology Project Fund's FY 2024-25 operating



appropriation by $296,344 for the implementation of these software.  Funding for this request will come from a
combination of interest earnings and excess, one-time fund balance reserves generated through project savings in
the FY 2024-25 Revised Budget.  
 
( i)  Water Util ity Fund - Message Board Replacement

Water requests $20,000 for the replacement of a message board that was hit by a third-party driver and damaged
beyond repair. $13,650 in recoveries were received from the third-party driver. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Water Utility Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$20,000 for the replacement message board.  Funding for this request will come from excess, one-time fund balance
reserves as well as recoveries from the third-party driver. 
 
( j)  Fleet Services Fund - Additional Samsara GPS & Camera Units

Fleet Services requests $21,000 to purchase additional GPS and dual-facing camera units for the remaining
Sanitation collection vehicles and future reserve units.  The integration of dual-facing cameras and GPS technology
into collection vehicles has proven instrumental in enhancing efficiency and accountability in field operations.  These
tools enable the management team to review area maps daily, ensuring complete coverage of all streets within
assigned collection areas.  The cameras also document missed set-outs by employees and late set-outs by
customers, providing valuable data for performance monitoring and service improvements.  Since the initial
implementation of this technology, reported missed collections have decreased by nearly 90%, demonstrating its
significant impact on operational effectiveness. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Fleet Services Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$21,000 for the additional GPS and camera units.  Funding for this request will come from changes to the Fleet
Service support allocations as a part of the FY 2024-25 Revised Budget. 
 
(k)  Recreation Performance Fund - Improvements for Recreation Centers

Recreation Performance requests $37,000 for interior improvements for the Hollabaugh and Bradfield Recreation
Centers. Hollabaugh Center is in need of $22,000 for manual shades in the new multi-purpose room to minimize
glare and heat from the sun. Additionally, the Bradfield Recreation Center is in need of $15,000 for chair replacement
that is used for programs, camps, and reservations. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Recreation Performance Fund's FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $37,000 for the shade installation and chair replacement. Funding for this request will come from
excess, one-time fund balance reserves.   
 
( l)  Electric Util ity Fund - Production Operations

Electric requests $940,000 to support unexpected maintenance activities and additional support services for GP&L
Production Operations. 

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Electric Utility Fund's FY 2024-25 operating appropriation by
$940,000 for the maintenance activities and support services. Funding for this request will come from excess, one-
time fund balance reserves. 
 
(m)  Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund - Pleasant Valley Road Improvements  
 
Streets requests $1.5 million for improvements on Pleasant Valley Road and Elm Grove Road.

Budget Amendment No. 1 proposes to increase the Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund FY 2024-25 operating
appropriation by $1.5 million for improvements on Pleasant Valley Road and Elm Grove Road. Funding for this
request will come from short-term tax note proceeds. 
 
Financial Considerations

Projects continued and outstanding Purchase Orders carried forward were fully funded in the FY 2023-24 Budget,
and the funds required to cover these expenditures remain within each fund's respective fund balance.  As a result,
there is no financial impact from approval of these items.  The additional expenses will be funded out of excess fund
balance reserves in each respective fund as well as additional revenue.  



Attachment A outlines all Open Encumbrances by Fund being rolled forward greater than $25,000. 

Attachment B outlines the Proposed Amendment by Fund, showing the combined impact of the amendment and
encumbrance roll forward as proposed.

Consideration / Recommendation
Consideration: 

1. Approve FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1 as proposed. 
2. Approve portions of FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1. 
3. Do not approve FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1. 

Recommendation: 
Option (1) - Approve FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1 as proposed. Unless otherwise directed
by City Council, this item will be scheduled for formal consideration at the April 1, 2025, Regular Meeting. 
 

Attachments
Attachment A - Schedule of Open Encumbrances being Rolled Forward
Attachment B - Schedule of Proposed Amendments by Fund



Amount

Outstanding

PO Description 9/30/2024

General Fund

City Secretary Digitization of City Records project $191,284

Animal Services Procurement of three Animal Services Officers Vehicles $135,102

Library Library's Stay Curious Campaign $243,675

Office of Neighborhood Vitality Professional Design Services for Corridors and Gateways $213,133

Parks, Recreation & Cultural Arts Professional Services for James Park Improvements $163,400

Hollabaugh Recreation Center Patio Fence 58,000

Swimming Pool Chemicals 35,850

Various Hardware Devices for Parks 68,971

Winter Soccer Bleachers 47,432

Planning & Development Halff Associates Third Party Plan Review $21,098

PMR Strategic Communications Plan $164,253

Transportation Replacement Bucket Truck $188,088

Non-Department Indirect Cost Study for Cost Allocation Plans $51,000

Emergency Generator Docking Stations 33,082

Recruiting Services for Various General Fund Positions 38,000

Various PO's Under $25,000 $338,584

Sub-Total General Fund $1,990,951

Economic Development Fund

Verdunity Comprehensive Plane Update $526,651

Various PO's Under $25,000 $91,845

Sub-Total Economic Development Fund $618,496

Electric Utility Fund

R22400v Bus Repair $215,564

Aerial Truck Repair 51,296

Motor Field Service Support for R3 Outage 35,000

2024 TMPA Maintenance Fee 50,319

GIS ESRI Next Generation Management Strategy 92,223

2024 TPL Assessment 187,878

Inverters - TMPA 30,247

Routine Vulnerability Assessment & Monitoring Software 40,863

Transmission Line Engineering Services 238,000

Olinger Plant Boiler Chemical Cleaning 546,008

PO's Under $25,000 310,272

Sub-Total Electric Utility Fund $1,797,670

ATTACHMENT A
2023-24 Rollover

(With Detail of PO's Over $25,000)

Fund/Department



Amount

Outstanding

PO Description 9/30/2024

ATTACHMENT A
2023-24 Rollover

(With Detail of PO's Over $25,000)

Fund/Department

Equipment Replacement Fund

City Marshal 2023 Ford Transit T-350 Van $72,123

Police Police Vehicle Upfitting and Equipment for 10 Tahoe SUVs 167,012

Police 6 2023 Tahoes SUVs 227,106

Police 2024 BMW R1250 RT-P Motorcycle 31,549

Police 4 2024 Toyota Camry Sedans 138,625              

Transportation 2022 Ford F-250 Regular Cab/Long Bed Truck 44,763

Transportation 2027 Dodge 5500 4X2 Diesel Regular Cab Truck 276,781

Transportation 2028 Dodge 5500 4X4 Diesel Regular Cab Truck 264,610

GP&L Altec Aerial AT37G-AWD Truck, 2026 Ford F-550 Chassis 236,820

GP&L Altec Aerial AT41M-Truck, 2026 Chevrolet 6500 Chassis 270,160

GP&L Freightliner 114SD Digger Truck Plus Conventional Chassis 715,206

Water 2 2024 Freightliner M2-106 Chassis Dump Trucks 281,386

Water 2024 Ford F-250 Super Cab Truck 74,109

Water 2024 Ford F-450 Super Cab Truck 118,720

Wastewater 2024 Ford F-450 Super Cab Truck 97,889

Wastewater 2022 Ford F-350 Extended Cab Truck 68,859

Street 2 2023 Ford F-350 Crew Cab Trucks 154,550

Street 2 2024 Ford F-350 Crew Cab Trucks 162,458

Fleet 2022 Ford F-350 Regular Cab Truck 76,907

Fleet 2022 Ford F-450 Regular Cab Truck 100,492

Equipment Replacement Fund (Continued)

PO's Under $25,000 $9,284

$3,589,409

Facilities Management Fund

New Scissor Lift $52,582

Standard Specifications Manual Development 112,890

Gail Fields Recreation Center Exterior Painting 49,190

Austin State Room Furniture 47,393

PO's Under $25,000 105,338

Sub-Total Facilities Management Fund $320,000

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund

Marketing & Advertising $42,551

PO's Under $25,000 33,515

Sub-Total Hotel/Motel Tax Fund $76,066

Sub-Total Equipment Replacement Fund



Amount

Outstanding

PO Description 9/30/2024

ATTACHMENT A
2023-24 Rollover

(With Detail of PO's Over $25,000)

Fund/Department

Information Technology Fund

Dillon Morgan Consulting $388,875

Workday HCM Support 45,654

Municipal Court Incode Case Management System 189,054

911 Telephone System Support 96,666

PC and Laptop Refresh 45,840

City Initiatives 105,880

Document Migration 33,211

EVault Upgrade and Support 30,480

Workday Training Credits 39,600

Teams Room Hardware 25,402

Microwave Links 77,529

Radio Shop Installation Services 48,672

Vehicle Installation Services 27,400

PO's Under $25,000 183,642

Sub-Total Information Technology Fund $1,337,905

Information Technology Replacement Fund

Computer Replacements $236,139

Networking Equipment Replacements and Backups 49,300

Data Center Services for Data Migration 40,000

$325,439

Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund

Pavement Condition Index Survey $46,604

Micro-Surfacing Program 213,720

Paving, Water, and Wastewater Improvements 251,175

Concrete Repair 25,346

Alley Improvements 492,109

PO's Under $25,000 112,458

$1,141,412

Narcotic Seizure Fund

Patrol Ballistic Shields $65,000

Swat Rifles 39,556

Sub-Total Narcotic Seizure Fund $104,556

Recreation Performance Fund

PO's Under $25,000 46,049

Sub-Total Recreation Performance Fund $46,049

Sanitation Fund

Consulting Services $87,900

PO's Under $25,000 39,333

$127,233

Self Insurance Fund

PO's Under $25,000 14,463

$14,463

Sub-Total Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund

Sub-Total Sanitation Fund

Sub-Total Self Insurance Fund

Sub-Total Information Technology Replacement Fund



Amount

Outstanding

PO Description 9/30/2024

ATTACHMENT A
2023-24 Rollover

(With Detail of PO's Over $25,000)

Fund/Department

Stormwater Management Fund

Procurement of two Excavators $96,350

Streambank Erosion Inventory 89,041

Local Flooding Improvements 90,000

PO's Under $25,000 72,929

Sub-Total Stormwater Management Fund $348,320

Wastewater Utility Fund

New Sewer Jet Truck $202,914

Permit Renewal for Treatment Plants 68,478

Rowlett Creek Effluent Pump Repair 59,664

De-Watering and Sludgeholding Tank Roof Repairs 28,030

PO's Under $25,000 49,151

Sub-Total Wastewater Utility Fund $408,237

Water Utility Fund

SCADA Masterplan Services $138,561

Lead and Copper Compliance Services 224,051

GP&L Centerville Site Development Engineering Services 44,000

Garland Water Utilities Warehouse Office 37,175

Water Loss Control Technical Assistance Services 136,520

Warehouse Inventory Moving Services 55,896

Satellite Imagery Analysis for Underground Water Leaks 127,500

Exterior Cameras for Water Building 43,252

Water Security Assessment 40,000

PO's Under $25,000 133,061

Sub-Total Water Utility Fund $980,016

All Other Funds PO's Under $25,000 $106,078

TOTAL OUTSTANDING PO's $13,332,300



Proposed Budget Amendment No. 1

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget Carryover of Open Expenditures 

FY 23-24 PO Not Anticipated Total Budget

Projects Rollover in FY 24-25 Amendments

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Sources of Funds:

General Fund - Revenue $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000

Sanitation Fund - Revenue 0 0 30,053 30,053

Recovery of Expenditure 0 0 13,650 13,650

Transfer to Fleet Services Fund from Sanitation 0 0 21,000 21,000

Transfer of Tax Notes to the Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund0 0 1,500,000 1,500,000

Transfer to Information Technology Fund from Various 0 0 1,158,231 1,158,231

Fund Balance - Prior Year 14,972,685 13,332,300 10,139,183 38,444,168
Total Funds Provided $14,972,685 $13,332,300 $12,867,117 $41,172,102

Use of Funds - Expenditures:
General Fund (See Detail in Notes) $64,115 $1,990,951 $4,975,776 * $7,030,842

Electric Utility Fund 0 1,797,670 2,047,220 3,844,890

Water Utility Fund 157,950 980,016 209,393 * 1,347,359

Wastewater Utility Fund 0 408,237 280,775 689,012

Infrastructure Repair & Replacement Fund 3,000,000 1,141,412 1,740,813 * 5,882,225

Sanitation Fund 0 127,233 271,724 398,957

Stormwater Management Fund 243,650 348,320 456,473 1,048,443

Firewheel Fund 0 4,500 61,767 66,267

Recreation Performance Fund 0 46,049 42,900 88,949

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 0 76,066 70,160 146,226

Economic Development Fund 335,726 618,496 28,522 982,744

TIF #1 Fund 580,890 1,775 255,587 838,252

Group Health Insurance Fund 0 0 46,219 46,219

Narcotic Seizure Fund 0 104,556 50,000 154,556

Public Safety Grant Fund 0 0 3,025 3,025

Parks Grant Fund 0 0 2,655 2,655

Self Insurance Fund 0 14,463 17,100 31,563

Equipment Replacement Fund 118,000 3,589,409 0 3,707,409

Fair Housing Fund 0 0 2,541 2,541

CASA Fund 0 65,049 1,660 66,709

Housing Assistance Fund 0 0 36,540 36,540

HOME Fund 0 0 1,781 1,781

Community Development Block Grant Fund 0 0 11,184 11,184

Customer Service Fund 0 26,754 198,051 224,805

Community Development Rehab Fund 0 0 8,020 8,020

Facilities Management Fund 0 320,000 78,861 398,861

Fleet Services Fund 0 0 105,092 * 105,092

Information Technology Fund 0 1,337,905 1,566,934 2,904,839

IT Project Fund 10,080,004 0 296,344 10,376,348

IT Replacement Fund 392,350 325,439 0 717,789

Communications Fund 0 8,000 0 8,000
Total Expenditures $14,972,685 $13,332,300 $12,867,117 $41,172,102

Proposed Amendment by Fund

ATTACHMENT B

* Requests that are Ongoing will be funded with excess, one-time fund balance reserves in FY 2024-25. This is a total of $169,841

and will require the appropriation of Ongoing Funding in FY 2025-26.



Proposed Budget Amendment No. 1

FY 2024-25 Operating Budget Carryover of Open Expenditures 

FY 23-24 PO Not Anticipated Total Budget

Projects Rollover in FY 24-25 Amendments

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Proposed Amendment by Fund

ATTACHMENT B

Notes:
General Fund -

Animal Services $0 $135,102 $111,724 * $246,826

Budget & Research 0 0 19,552 19,552

Building Inspection 0 0 45,581 45,581

City Administration 0 0 61,577 61,577

City Attorney 0 635 91,486 92,121

City Secretary 0 191,284 10,446 201,730

Code Compliance 0 0 84,047 84,047

Cultural Arts 0 0 29,811 29,811

Emergency Management 0 0 18,237 18,237

Engineering 0 11,921 89,698 101,619

Environmental Compliance 0 0 47,251 47,251

Finance 0 0 43,410 43,410

Fire 0 6,285 1,234,018 1,240,303

Health 0 0 25,045 25,045

Human Resources 0 0 59,754 59,754

Internal Audit 0 0 19,968 19,968

Landfill 0 10,539 101,860 112,399

Legislative & Public Affairs 0 0 12,299 12,299

Library 0 261,727 123,095 384,822

Municipal Court 0 0 66,180 66,180

Neighborhood Vitality 64,115 228,703 19,002 311,820

Parks and Recreation 0 470,316 277,837 748,153

Planning & Development 0 49,685 29,808 79,493

Project Management Office 0 2,760 18,457 21,217

Police 0 85,446 2,026,452 2,111,898

Public & Media Relations 0 164,253 30,180 194,433

Procurement 0 1,889 33,211 35,100

Special Events 0 20,703 27,807 48,510

Tax Collection 0 12,290 9,847 22,137

Transportation 0 215,331 55,762 271,093

Non-Departmental 0 122,082 152,374 274,456
   Sub-Total General Fund $64,115 $1,990,951 $4,975,776 $7,030,842

* General Fund requests that are Ongoing will be funded with excess, one-time fund balance reserves in FY 2024-25. This is a total 

of $48,558 and will require the appropriation of Ongoing Funding in FY 2025-26.



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 4.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Title: Grant Disbursement Agreement - Garland Housing Finance Corporation
Submitted By: Jason Wilhite, Construction Manager
Strategic Focus Area: Vibrant Neighborhoods and

Commercial Centers
Issue/Summary
Council is requested to consider accepting a $540,000 grant from the Garland Housing Finance Corporation
(GHFC) to continue the Garland Partnership Program with the City of Garland and authorize the City Manager to sign
and execute a disbursement agreement for deployment of these funds. 

Background
The City of Garland has partnered with Garland Housing Finance Corporation for the previous 4 years to offer
homeowner assistance to low-income Garland residents.  The purpose of the 2025 grant is to provide funding and
support for emergency home repairs, substantial home repairs and qualified exterior repairs. Fifteen percent of the
total grant is allocated to cover salary and administrative expenses.  The GHFC Garland Partnership Program
augments the City of Garland's existing Home Repair Program, which is funded annually by HUD for home
repairs.  The GHFC grant programs are administered by the Community Development Department, with support from
the Office of Neighborhood Vitality and Code Compliance departments.  In 2024, the GHFC offered $540,000 through
a Garland Partnership Program grant to the City of Garland.  To date, 100% of these funds have been spent or
committed to projects.  

Consideration / Recommendation
Staff recommends acceptance of the 2025 Garland Partnership grant funds to enable the continuation of the Housing
Repair Program.

Attachments
GHFC 2025 Grant Agreement





















GARLAND

PLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 5. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: Garland Development Code (GDC) Amendment (25-04)
Submitted By: Nabila Nur, Planning and Development Director
REQUEST
Hold a public hearing and consider amendments to Chapter 2, Article 5 Use Regulations, Chapter 2, Attachment 1 --
Land Use Matrix as it relates to Commercial Drone Delivery Hub, and Chapter 6 Definitions. The purpose of this
amendment is to establish regulations and standards for Commercial Drone Delivery Hubs.

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On March 10, 2025, the Plan Commission, by a vote of nine (9) to zero (0), recommended approval of the proposed
amendment.

BACKGROUND
With the increasing use of commercial drone delivery options by many businesses, the Development Services
Committee has recently evaluated the feasibility of incorporating regulations for those facilities and reported out to
City Council recommending the following updates:

Creating definitions for the following new terms:
Commercial Drone Delivery Hub (Large) -- takeoff weight of 55 pounds or over
Commercial Drone Delivery Hub (small) -- takeoff weight of under 55 pounds

Drone Staging Area
Establishing setbacks and placement requirements for the drone staging area
Formulating screening requirements for equipment/accessory structure
Regulating proximity to noise-sensitive uses
Establishing parking and loading requirements
Formulating specific hours of operation 
Updating the use chart for these uses

Attachments
Ordinance Drone Delivery
Exhibit A Drone Delivery Land Use Matrix
Drone Amendment R&M



1

ORDINANCE NO. XXXXX

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2, “ZONING
REGULATIONS,” THE LAND USE MATRIX OF CHAPTER 2, AND CHAPTER
6, “DEFINITIONS” OF THE GARLAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF THE CITY
OF GARLAND, TEXAS; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GARLAND,
TEXAS:

Section 1

That Section 2.52 “Special Standards for Certain Uses,” of
Chapter 2, Article 5, “Use Regulations,” of the Garland
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby
amended by addition to add Section 2.52(A)(38) and to read as
follows:

“Section 2.52 Special Standards for Certain Uses

. . .

(38) Commercial Drone Delivery Hubs. A Commercial Drone
Delivery Hub must comply with the following standards and
conditions, and any property specific standards expressly
provided for in the Specific Use Provision:

(a) Commercial Drone Delivery Hubs (large). A
commercial drone delivery hub (large) may be
allowed, if and where granted a specific use
provision, in an Industrial district if the
requirements of this section are met.

(b) Commercial Drone Delivery Hubs (small). A
commercial drone delivery hub (small) is allowed as
a primary use, if and where granted a specific use
provision, in the Industrial, Heavy Commercial,
Light Commercial, and Community Retail districts
when the requirements of this section are met.

(c)Drone Staging Areas.

i. The drone staging area must be designated
on a site plan.



2

ii. The drone staging area must not be
placed;

a. Within any required building setbacks;

b. Within any required landscape edge;

c. Withing fire lanes, easements,
maneuvering aisles, customer pick-up
lanes, or required loading zones or
parking spaces; or

d. So as to obstruct visibility or
interfere with pedestrian or vehicle
circulation.

iii. When located at grade, any goods,
materials, containers, trailers, or
other equipment must be screened
according to the requirements for open
storage consistent with Division 5,
Article 3 of Chapter 4 of this GDC.
Landing pads are exempt from this
screening requirement. The Plan
Commission may waive the requirements
with approval of a site plan.

iv. When a drone staging area is located on
top of a building:

a. Any roof-mounted mechanical equipment,
excluding landing pads, is subject to
the mechanical screening requirements
in consistent with section 4.46
Screening of Roof- and Ground-Mounted
Mechanical Equipment of this GDC, and
 

b. Any additional structure, parapet
wall, screening, safety railing, or
other appurtenance associated with the
commercial drone delivery hub is
subject to the maximum heigh
requirement of the district, except a
single mast up to 10 feet in height for



3

a windsock may exceed the maximum
height requirement.

v. Antennas and antenna support structures
are subject to the requirements
consistent with Division 5, Article 5 of
Chapter 2 of this GDC.

vi. Proximity to Noise-Sensitive Uses

a. The drone staging area for a
commercial drone delivery hub (small)
shall not be located within 150 feet
of any property upon which a
residential dwelling is located.

b. The drone staging area for a
commercial drone delivery hub (large)
shall not be located withing 300 feet
of any property upon which a
residential dwelling is located.

c. The measurement of the required buffer
is to be made in a straight horizontal
line from the edge of the drone staging
area to the closest property line of a
property containing a residential
dwelling.

d. Notwithstanding any provision
contained herein to the contrary,
sound levels may not exceed the
limitations on environmental sound
levels described in Section 22.69 of
the Code of Ordinances.

e. Sound study.

i. The minimum distances contained
within this subsection may be
lowered if the applicant can
present evidence to the Plan
Director from a sound study that
the proposed drone delivery hub,
when drones are immediately
taking off, produces less than 70
dba when measured from the



4

nearest residential property
boundary.

ii. For purposes of this section, a
sound study must be prepared by a
professionally accredited or
licensed acoustical consultant or
acoustical engineer.

iii. In the event the minimum required
distances are lowered due to a
sound study, drone delivery hub
operations may not continue after
9:00 p.m.

(d)  Parking and loading.

i.   Parking is not required for an accessory
commercial drone delivery hub use.

ii.  Loading spaces shall be provided for a
commercial drone delivery hub as
required by Section 4.22 of this GDC.
Loading spaces shall not be required for
an accessory commercial drone delivery
hub use.

iii. There shall be one parking space per
1,000 square feet of areas designated for
storage or warehousing, plus one space
per 300 square feet of floor area for
office, customer service, or other areas.

...”

Section 2

That the “Land Use Matrix,” of Chapter 2, of the Garland
Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is hereby
amended in part under “Commercial Uses,” as more particularly
depicted and described in Exhibit “A”, which is attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference.



5

Section 3

That 6.03 “Definitions” of Chapter 6, “Definitions” of the
Garland Development Code of the City of Garland, Texas, is
hereby amended by addition to read as follows:

“Section 6.03 Definitions

...
Commercial Drone Delivery Hub (Large): An area of land,
structural surface, building, or structure with one or
more designated drone staging areas for use by unmanned
aircraft, including but not limited to those defined
under Commercial Drone Delivery Hub (Small), to
distribute commercial goods by air. This includes any
appurtenant areas used or intended for use for unmanned
aircraft system buildings, structures, and other
facilities.

Commercial Drone Delivery Hub (Small): An area of land,
structural surface, building, or structure with one or
more designated drone staging areas for use by small,
unmanned aircraft systems (sUAS) under 55 pounds total
takeoff weight or as defined in Section 44801 of Title
49, United States Code, as amended, whichever is the
lesser, to distribute commercial goods by air. This
includes any appurtenant areas used or intended for use
for unmanned aircraft system buildings, structures, and
other facilities.

...
Drone Staging Area: a designated area over which an
unmanned aircraft completes the final phase of the
approach, to a hover or a landing, and from which an
unmanned aircraft initiates take-off. The Drone Staging
Area includes both the launch pads and any required
safety areas, and may include areas for the outdoor
storage of goods, materials, containers, trailers, or
other equipment.

...”

Section 4

That Chapter 2 of the Garland Development Code shall be and
remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by
this Ordinance.



6

Section 5

That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be
a misdemeanor punishable in accordance with Sec. 10.05 of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Garland, Texas.

Section 6

That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable
and are governed by Sec. 1.07 of the Garland Development Code
of the City of Garland, Texas.

Section 7

That this ordinance shall be and become effective immediately
upon and after its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED this [   ] day of [    ] 2025.

CITY OF GARLAND, TEXAS

__________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________ PUBLISHED:
City Secretary



Exhibit “A”
Ch.2 Land Use Matrix

“...

...

...”

COMMERCIAL USES

AG
SF-
E

SF-
10 SF-7

SF-
5 SFA 2F

MF
(MF-
0, MF

-1
and

MF-2) NO CO NS CR LC HC IN
U
R UB

DT
(see
Ch.
7)

Parking
Requirements

Cross-
Reference(s)
for Special
Standards

Commercial
Drone Delivery
Hub (large)

S - 2.52
(38)

Commercial
Drone Delivery
Hub (small)

S S S S 2.52
(38)





REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, March 10, 2025

3c. APPROVED Hold a public hearing to consider amendments to Chapter 2, Article
5 Use Regulations, Chapter 2, Attachment 1 -- Land Use Matrix as it relates to
Commercial Drone Delivery Hub, and Chapter 6 Definitions.

Planning Director, Nabila Nur, provided an overview of the amendments to Chapter 2,
Article 5 Use Regulations, Chapter 2, Attachment 1 -- Land Use Matrix as it relates to
Commercial Drone Delivery Hub, and Chapter 6 Definitions and remained available for
questions.

Motion was made by Commissioner Dalton to close the public hearing and approve the
amendment as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Duckworth. Motion carried: 9
Ayes, 0 Nays.



GARLAND

PLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 6. a.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: Z 24-37 Prime Data Centers / Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr (District 7)
Submitted By: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
REQUEST
Approval of 1) an expansion of the existing Planned Development district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to
include additional area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary to primarily accommodate a change in
the driveway location 2) an updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and Electric Substations.

LOCATION
Northeast Corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road

OWNER
Woodlands of Spring Creek LP

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On December 9th, 2024, with a nine (9) to zero (0) vote, the Plan Commission recommended approval of 1) an
expansion of the existing Planned Development district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to include additional
area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary to primarily accommodate a change in the driveway
location 2) an updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and Electric Substations.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
As the proposed expansion of an existing PD generates the path for a more efficient use of  an approved
development site and enables building footprint to be placed away from a natural preserve, staff recommends
approval of 1) an expansion of the existing Planned Development district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to
include additional area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary 2) an updated Concept Plan for a Data
Center and Electric Substations.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently undeveloped. The applicant proposes an update to Planned Development (PD)
District 23-47 for Community Office (CO) District Uses containing a data center and an electric substation to support
the data center. This update will expand the site from 48.93 acres to 54.54 acres by adding a 5.611-acre piece of
land zoned Agricultural (AG) District at the corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road. This land is proposed to be
rezoned and incorporated into the existing PD and data center site, containing access points, a gate, and other
proposed equipment.

SITE DATA
The subject property contains approximately 54.54 acres with the addition to the site being 5.611 acres. Also, the site
has approximately 2,275 linear feet of frontage along Holford Road and 700 linear feet along Arapaho Road. The site
can be accessed from two access points along Holford Road within the 5.611-acre addition.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The subject property is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 23-47 for Community Office Uses and Data Center
with an accompanying substation and Agricultural (AG) District. The Agricultural District is generally intended for
agricultural or open space purposes.

The expansion of the Planned Development (PD) District 23-47 onto the neighboring Agricultural (AG) District lot
triggers a rezoning of the site, though a data center and accompanying substation are now allowed by right on the
land included in the Planned Development. The inclusion of the additional area within the PD would ensure the entire



development of the proposed data center remain under one zoning district. Additionally, the updated concept plan
incorporates the change of the driveway location and access points, which creates improved vehicular entry/exit and
flow for the site and also shifts the buildings southward, away from the Spring Creek Forest Preserve, which is
considered an added benefit. There are no proposed changes to the provisions and conditions approved with the
original PD 23-47.

CONSIDERATIONS

Planned Development:   
The Planned Development (PD) District Ordinance 23-47 will remain in effect on the current site and applied to the
proposed area of expansion, if approved.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Envision Garland Plan designates the subject property as Compact Neighborhoods. Compact neighborhoods
provide areas for moderate increases in residential density, including single-family attached and single-family
detached housing. It expands housing options through infill and redevelopment, while continuing walkable
development patterns.

The proposed expansion will not have an additional impact on the area as it would be an expansion of an approved
development.  

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The property to the northeast is zoned Agricultural (Ag) and contains the Spring Creek preserve. The properties to
the east are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 19-04 and Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) District; these properties are
developed with apartment complexes. The properties to the south are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 22-
80 and Planned development (PD) District 21-01; there is a senior living complex under construction. The properties
to the west, across Holford Road, are zoned Agricultural (AG) District, Single-Family-7 (SF-7) District and Planned
Development (PD) District 78-83; there is a fire station across Holford Road.

Attachments
Z 24-37 Location Map
Z 24-37 PD Conditions
Z 24-37 Concept Plan
Z 24-37 R&M
Z 24-37 Responses
Z 24-37 Staff Presentation



A
R

R
O

W
C

R
E

S
T

LN

T
R

E
E

 T
O

P
 LN

SW
IS

HER P
L

G
RAY

SO
N AV

E
ARAPAHO RD

TRAVISLN

FA
NNIN

 D
R

LA
N

C
E

C
R

E
S

T 
D

R

GLEN HEIGHTS DR

HOLF
ORD R

D

LACEW
OOD DR

WILD
OAK LN

STONECASTLE

DR

ARROWCREST CT

RENEGADE
W

Y

W
ALLER W

Y

WALNUT
GROVE LN

G
R

A
N

D
V

IL
LA

 L
N

CHAM
BERS CIR

N G
ARLA

ND A
VE

SPRING CREEK W
Y

JOHN SHARP CIR

JASMINE LN

H
E

A
R

T
H

C
R

E
S

T
 D

R

KNIGHTHOOD LN

G
LE

N
 V

IS
TA

 D
R

S F - 7S F - 7

S  1 4 - 2 4S  1 4 - 2 4

P D  7 8 - 8 3P D  7 8 - 8 3

P D  8 3 - 1 4 3P D  8 3 - 1 4 3

P D  0 5 - 2 5P D  0 5 - 2 5

M F - 1M F - 1

P D
2 4 - 1 1

P D
2 4 - 1 1

P D  0 2 - 2 8P D  0 2 - 2 8

P D
8 6 - 3 5

P D
8 6 - 3 5

P D
2 0 - 3 5

P D
2 0 - 3 5

P D  0 8 - 4 5P D  0 8 - 4 5

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

A GA G

P D
1 4 - 0 9

P D
1 4 - 0 9

S  1 5 - 3 4S  1 5 - 3 4

S  2 0 - 4 3S  2 0 - 4 3

A GA G

A GA G S F - 7S F - 7

P D  1 7 - 2 8P D  1 7 - 2 8

A GA G

A GA G

P D  1 9 - 0 4P D  1 9 - 0 4

P D  2 0 - 3 7P D  2 0 - 3 7

P D  2 1 - 0 1P D  2 1 - 0 1

P D  1 6 - 1 3P D  1 6 - 1 3

P D
2 2 - 8 0

P D
2 2 - 8 0

P D  2 0 - 3 5P D  2 0 - 3 5

P D / S
2 3 - 4 4
P D / S
2 3 - 4 4

P D
2 2 - 6 4

P D
2 2 - 6 4

P D  2 3 - 4 7P D  2 3 - 4 7

P D
9 9 - 4 9

P D
9 9 - 4 9

¯
Northwest Corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUESTZONING MAP Z 24-37

0 1,000500 ft



APPROVED WITH ORIGINAL PD 23-47







CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

CBL

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE
OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

CB
L

CBL

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OHE

OH
E

OHE

OHE

O
HE

OHE

OHE

OHEOHEOHE

OHE

SPRING CREEK
SENIOR LIVING LLC

WOODLANDS ARAPAHO
BLOCK 1 LOT 1

W
OODLA

NDS O
F

SPRIN
G C

REEK LP

SANCTUARY B
LO

CK 1 
LO

T 1

JOHNSHARPCIR

GLEN
HEIGHTS
DRIVE

JASMINE
LANE

JJ
W

 A
SS

ET

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 
LL

C

TH
OM

AS
 M

ONTG
OM

ER
Y

AB
ST

RAC
T 
96

2 
PA

GE 
14

5

TR
AC

T 
5

WALNUT
GROVE
LANE

CIT
Y 

OF

GAR
LA

ND

TH
OM

AS

M
ONTG

OM
ER

Y

AB
ST

RAC
T 
96

2

PA
GE 

14
5

SPRING CREEK PHASE 2
(BY OTHERS)

(221103-2)

10" CEDAR ELM
8" HACKBERRY

28" HACKBERRY

10" HACKBERRY

7" HACKBERRY
12" HACKBERRY

11" HACKBERRY

6" CEDAR ELM10" HACKBERRY

10" HACKBERRY

17" HACKBERRY

10" HACKBERRY

12" CEDAR

8" CEDAR

18" CEDAR

6" CEDAR ELM

11" CEDAR ELM

6" HACKBERRY
9" HACKBERRY

7" CEDAR ELM

6" HACKBERRY

19" HACKBERRY
13" HACKBERRY

16" CEDAR

7" HACKBERRY

16" ELM

9" HACKBERRY

7" CEDAR ELM

9" ELM6" CEDAR ELM
8" CEDAR ELM

11" CEDAR6" HACKBERRY

6" HACKBERRY

9" HACKBERRY

/175/" DEAD TREE

22" CEDAR

12" ASH
8" ASH

7" ASH

10" ASH

14" ASH

15" ELM

7" CEDAR

13" CEDAR ELM8" CEDAR ELM

11" CEDAR ELM

10" CEDAR

6" ASH
7" ASH

18" CEDAR ELM

6" PECAN

11" CEDAR

12" CEDAR

16" CEDAR

11" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

13" CEDAR

18" CEDAR

20" CEDAR

8" CEDAR
13" CEDAR

13" CEDAR

24" CEDAR

19" CEDAR

8" HACKBERRY

15" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

27" CEDAR

22" CEDAR

13" CEDAR

15" HACKBERRY

6" CEDAR ELM

7" CEDAR ELM

8" HACKBERRY

11" HACKBERRY

10" OAK

8" OAK

7" CEDAR ELM

13" HACKBERRY

8" HACKBERRY
8" CEDAR ELM

10" HACKBERRY

14" CEDAR

18" OAK

8" OAK
8" CEDAR

11" CEDAR

8" CEDAR

20" ELM

12" ELM

20" ELM
9" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

6" HACKBERRY

14" CEDAR ELM

13" ELM

7" CEDAR10" CEDAR ELM

6" CEDAR
10" HACKBERRY

12" ELM

6" OAK
8" HACKBERRY

9" ELM

9" ELM
12" HACKBERRY

9" CEDAR

11" ELM6" CEDAR ELM

7" DOGWOOD

14" CEDAR

7" HACKBERRY

7" CEDAR14" ELM
6" CEDAR ELM

13" ELM

13" ELM

19" ELM
9" CEDAR ELM

7" CEDAR ELM

6" ELM

11" ASH

7" ELM

23" ELM

9" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

17" HACKBERRY

7" CEDAR

6" ELM11" OAK

8" CEDAR

13" CEDAR
14" OAK

8" ELM6" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

11" CEDAR11" CEDAR

7" CEDAR

10" ELM

10" PECAN

6" ELM
9" ELM

10" OAK17" OAK

10" ELM

13" ELM

15" ELM

26" ELM

13" OAK

13" ELM 7" OAK

7" CEDAR

7" OAK

9" ELM

9" OAK

9" ELM

13" OAK

8" OAK

6" ELM

36" CEDAR

7" ELM

9" ELM

6" ASH

6" MAPLE

20" PECAN

7" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

9" OAK

12" OAK

8" ELM
15" PECAN

6" HACKBERRY

7" HACKBERRY

10" OAK
15" OAK

12" OAK

22" OAK

38" OAK

12" ELM

9" ELM
6" ELM11" ELM

10" OAK

8" CEDAR6" CEDAR
20" PECAN13" OAK

29" OAK

12" PECAN

32" OAK

MT" MAPLE

9" PECAN

15" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

10" PECAN

8" PECAN

10" CEDAR

10" OAK

11" OAK

7" OAK

10" PECAN

25" PECAN

25" PECAN

25" PECAN

24" PECAN

8" PECAN

7" CEDAR

25" MAPLE

19" OAK

12" OAK

8" OAK
11" ASH

7" OAK
9" OAK

22" ELM7" HACKBERRY

12" ELM

8" ELM
19" ELM

13" OAK

24" OAK

16" OAK

17" OAK

14" OAK

15" ELM

18" CEDAR
21" HACKBERRY

20" HACKBERRY

9" HACKBERRY
24" CEDARAD" CEDAR

22" ELM

6" ELM6" ELM

19" HACKBERRY

26" CEDAR

11" HACKBERRY

29" CEDAR

22" ELM

13/8648/" HACKBERRY

8" HACKBERRY

21" ELM 10" ELM

9" HACKBERRY

19" CEDAR

16" CEDAR

19" HACKBERRY

16" HACKBERRY

9" HACKBERRY33" OAK
12" OAK

12" HACKBERRY
15" ELM

25" ELM

33" HACKBERRY

8" ELM

6" OAK

9" ELM22" ELM

10" ELM

17" ELM

14" CEDAR ELM

8" ELM

8" ELM

13" ELM

11" ELM

6" PECAN

6" ELM

10" ELM

8" ELM

9" ELM

14" ELM
10" ELM

7" ELM

11" ELM

7" ELM

6" MAPLE

7" PECAN

6" ELM

8" CEDAR

7" ELM10" CEDAR
12" CEDAR

12" PECAN

14" CEDAR

11" HACKBERRY
14" OAK

20" ELM

9" ELM

12" OAK

14" HACKBERRY

10" CEDAR
9" ELM

9" ELM

14" ELM

12" CEDAR

11" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

21" ELM

10" ELM

8" CEDAR

8" CEDAR
10" CEDAR

14" CEDAR

13" ELM

11" CEDAR

10" ELM

13" OAK

13" OAK

8" ELM

8" OAK
7" CEDAR

11" OAK

7" ELM

11" CEDAR
7" CEDAR

8" CEDAR7" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

9" ELM

8" ELM

10" HACKBERRY13" HACKBERRY16" ELM

28" OAK
11" ELM

9" ELM

8" ELM

9" ELM

13" CEDAR

11" CEDAR

10" CEDAR

8" CEDAR

8" ELM
10" ELM

10" CEDAR7" ELM
10" CEDAR

14" ASH

7" ASH

11" CEDAR
10" CEDAR

15" CEDAR 11" ASH

7" ELM
10" ELM11" ELM

16" CEDAR

12" ASH

15" ASH

8" PECAN

10" ASH

6" ASH

8" ASH
6" ASH

23" ASH7" HACKBERRY

18" ELM

7" ELM

24" OAK

40" OAK

11" CEDAR

11" CEDAR

11" ELM

18" ASH
23" PECAN

14" ASH9" CEDAR

22" PECAN

25" PECAN

9" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

26" PECAN

8" ELM

12" ASH

8" ASH
10" ASH

12" CEDAR

8" ASH

6" ELM

7" CEDAR
15" CEDAR

15" CEDAR
15" CEDAR

13" CEDAR

23" OAK

6" HACKBERRY8" CEDAR

23" OAK

11" CEDAR

11" ELM

6" ELM
32" OAK

6" ELM

6" HACKBERRY6" ELM 29" OAK

11" ELM

8" ELM

13" ELM

9" ELM

8" ELM

8" ELM

10" ELM

12" ASH

7" ASH

28" OAK

12" CEDAR

6" ELM

6" HACKBERRY

8" ELM

27" OAK

11" ELM

30" OAK

30" OAK

7" ELM

10" ELM

8" ELM
8" ELM 9" ELM

8" HACKBERRY

6" ELM 7" ELM

7" ELM

11" ELM

7" ELM

6" ELM

6" ELM

7" ELM 8" PECAN

10" CEDAR

8" PECAN
10" LOCUST

8" ELM

7" PECAN

12" OAK

18" ASH

24" OAK

8" ELM

6" LOCUST

10" ELM
9" ELM

18" OAK

10" ELM

14" ASH 28" OAK

8" ELM

8" ASH

12" ELM

12" ELM

23" OAK

23" OAK
23" ELM

10" ELM

12" CEDAR

6" CEDAR

8" CEDAR10" CEDAR
14" OAK

6" OAK

11" OAK
11" OAK

13" OAK

8" CEDAR

10" ASH

10" OAK

10" OAK

8" CEDAR

14" OAK

12" ELM
12" OAK

13" OAK

12" OAK

9" OAK
11" OAK

17" OAK

7" ASH14" CEDAR ELM

10" OAK

7" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

8" ELM

10" ELM

12" ELM

10" ELM

10" ELM

15" ELM
9" ELM

8" OAK

6" OAK

7" PINE
6" OAK

13" OAK

8" OAK
7" OAK

9" HACKBERRY

13" OAK

6" OAK
9" OAK

12" OAK

11" OAK

7" OAK

15" OAK

6" OAK
6" OAK

9" PINE

10" PINE
7" PINE

25" OAK

30" OAK

7" PINE

27" OAK

30" OAK
22" OAK

8" PINE

6" PINE

10" OAK
6" OAK

7" OAK

11" OAK 10" OAK

10" OAK17" OAK

15" OAK

9" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

8" CEDAR ELM

11" CEDAR

18" CEDAR

11" CEDAR ELM

13" CEDAR ELM

6" CEDAR ELM

8" CEDAR ELM11" CEDAR ELM
8" OAK

8" CEDAR
8" CEDAR

6" HACKBERRY12" ELM

10" ELM

10" CEDAR
11" CEDAR

17" ELM 13" CEDAR

7" OAK

10" OAK

10" CEDAR

10" OAK

25" OAK

13" OAK

9" CEDAR14" OAK

8" CEDAR

8" CEDAR

8" CEDAR

9" CEDAR

7" HACKBERRY
7" HACKBERRY

10" HACKBERRY

9" CEDAR

7" MISC. TREE

8" CEDAR

7" OAK

7" OAK

24" OAK

9" OAK

28" OAK

21" OAK

30" OAK

15" OAK
11" OAK

6" OAK

7" ELM

13" CEDAR

6" OAK

6" ASH

13" PECAN

12" PECAN

7" OAK

7" OAK

S

S

S

S

E

E

E

E

E

E

D

D

HOLF
ORD R

OAD

(A
 V

ARIA
BLE

 R
IG

HT-O
F-W

AY)

APN: 2
65

01
72

00
10

02
00

00

42
21

 N
 G

ARLA
ND A

VE

SP
R

IN
G

 C
R

EE
K

GRAVEL

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XX

ARAPAHO ROAD

HOLF
ORD R

OAD

SPRING CREEK

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

EV

S44
°0

0'2
5"W

  1
99

.75
'

S45°39'13"E  1256.09'

N45°51'58"W  728.39'

S44
°0

8'3
7"W

  4
31

.33
'

N45°51'58"W  801.05'

S44
°0

8'3
7"W

  4
77

.72
'

N45°51'18"W
515.28'

N39°35'45"W
100.70'

N45°21'49"W
80.83'

N21°47'59"E
15.34'

N44
°3

3'3
5"E

16
1.9

8' S29°16'06"E

233.37'

S67°55'56"E
89.00'

S01°43'43"W
67.21'

S05°29'46"E
48.87'

S24°25'46"W
40.26'

S62°05'08"W
51.28'

S34°48'53"W
37.34'

S14°24'38"E
53.65'

S31°33'36"E
68.80'

S00°01'15"E
41.31'

S27°20'12"W
43.51'

S62°00'14"W
48.29'

S21°34'51"W
34.40'

S14°01'24"W
92.87'

S14°01'16"W
8.78'

S55°04'43"W
69.88'

S60°45'43"W
59.86'

N45°51'23"W

108.32'

S43
°4

0'3
6"W

69
3.0

8'

S45°51'27"E
516.84'

HOLF
ORD R

D

ARAPAHO RD

GENERAL NOTES:

1. PER THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN, HOLFORD ROAD IS PROGRAMMED TO BE EXPANDED IN THE FUTURE.
PER THE GDC, SECTION 3.47, IF HOLFORD ROAD BOND PROJECT CONSTRUCTION HAS NOT COMMENCED
AT THE TIME OF SITE PERMIT THEN THE DEVELOPER SHALL PAY ADDITIONAL ROADWAY IMPACT FEES
TO PAY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION COST OF ONE-HALF OF THE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS ADJACENT TO
THEIR PROPERTY, NOT TO EXCEED THE DEVELOPER'S PROPORTIONAL SHARE.

2. LANDSCAPE BUFFER, ALONG HOLFORD ROAD, IS BETWEEN 16' TO 40' WIDE FROM PROPOSED
BOUNDARY TO EDGE OF LOOP ROAD.

3. HOLFORD ROAD EXPANSION IS SHOWN IN PLAN AS A VISUAL. CONSTRUCTION OF ROAD, TRAIL,
SIDEWALKS, AND BARRIER FREE RAMPS IS NOT INCLUDED WITH THE SCOPE OF THIS PROJECT.

4. ALL CURB RADII IS 50' UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE PLANS.

5. EXISTING TREES ALONG HOLFORD ROAD COULD AFFECT SIDEWALK AND DRIVEWAY LOCATIONS.

6. ALL EXISTING CONTOURS PER KIMLEY-HORN SURVEY DATED 10/31/2023.
        ADDITIONAL ELEMENTS SURVEYED ON 06/04/204.

7. SITE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION PLANS SHALL CONFORM TO ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE GARLAND
DEVELOPMENT CODE (GDC), TECHNICAL STANDARD MANUAL (TSM), AND CITY CODES UNLESS AN
APPROVED PD NARRATIVE CONDITION EXPRESSLY PROVIDES OTHERWISE. THE CONCEPT PLAN SHALL
BE USED TO REPRESENT THE GENERAL IDEA OF THE PROPOSED LAND USE AND SITE ELEMENTS. THE
CONCEPT PLAN SHALL NOT SUPERSEDE, AND SHALL BE SUBORDINATE TO, THE STANDARDS,
REQUIREMENTS, AND CONDITIONS OF THE GDC, TSM, CITY CODE, OR THE APPROVED PD.

APPLICANT / DEVELOPER
PRIME DATA CENTERS
400 NORTH ERVAY STREET
PO BOX 131465
DALLAS, TX 75313
(925)786-8722

WOODLANDS OF SPRING CREEK LP
14114 N. DALLAS PARKWAY, SUITE 265
DALLAS, TX 75254
CONTACT: MICHAEL HOLIGAN
PH: (972)385-2620

OWNERENGINEER
OLSSON
5700 TENNYSON PARKWAY,
SUITE 100
PLANO, TX 75024
CONTACT: RUSTY COAN, P.E.
FIRM REGISTRATION NO.: 4253
PH: (479)443-3404

FIR
E LA

NE

FIRE LANE

FIRE LANE

FIR
E LA

NE

FIRE LANE

FIRE LANE

FIR
E LA

NE

FIR
E LA

NE

PROPOSED 20' DEDICATED
FOR FUTURE HOLFORD ROAD

EXPANSION

PROPOSED 6' SIDEWALK
AND ADA RAMP FOR 20' ROW

/ NON-RESIDENTIAL
DRIVEWAY PER GARLAND

STANDARD DETAIL 6/7

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED
RETAINING WALL

6' BENCHES AND 36"
SQUARE PLANTER
POTS (TYP)
(SEE ARCHITECTURE
DRAWINGS)

6' BENCHES AND 36"
SQUARE PLANTER
POTS (TYP)
(SEE ARCHITECTURE
DRAWINGS)

ACCESS READER AND
PROP. KNOX BOX W/
MANUAL OVERRIDE

EXISTING DRAINAGE
EASEMENT
(WIDTH VARIES)
TO BE ABANDONED
WITH THIS PROJECT

100-YR ULTIMATE
FLOODPLAIN
(PER 1988 ROWLETT
AND SPRING CREEK
FLOOD PLAIN
MANAGEMENT STUDY)

SUBSTATION
ACCESS

ACCESS
GATE

SITE DATA SUMMARY TABLE - CASE NUMBER 230928-1

GENERAL SITE DATA

DATA CENTER /EMERGENCY
ACCESS

ACCESS
GATE

ACCESS
GATE

CONCRETE
TURNAROUND

NON-GATED SUBSTATION
ACCESS ONLY

HOLFORD ROAD ACCESS

HOLFORD ROAD ACCESS

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

B
Y

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 4

79
.4

43
.3

40
4

35
37

 N
 S

te
el

e 
B

lv
d.

Fa
ye

tte
vi

lle
, A

R
 7

27
03

P
R

IM
E

 D
A

TA
 C

E
N

TE
R

- D
FW

02
C

O
N

C
E

P
T 

P
LA

N

G
A

R
LA

N
D

,T
X

20
24

JBW
CJL

MKL
MKL

E23-03967

11/13/2024

TX
 S

ta
te

 C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

#F
-4

25
3

CASE NUMBER 230928-1

11 of

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

SITE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
PROPERTY/LEASE LINE

EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT
PROP. BUILDING SETBACK

LEGEND

FEMA ZONE AE FLOODWAY

FEMA ZONE AE (100 YEAR)

FEMA ZONE X SHADED (500 YEAR)

1988 SPRING CREEK STUDY (100 YR)

ACCESS
GATE

ACCESS
GATE

15" EXTERIOR
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

15' EXTERIOR
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

25' EXTERIOR
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

25' EXTERIOR
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

TEMPORARY
GRAVEL DRIVE

VICINITY MAP

BUILDINGS

DRIVES

PARKING

GREENSPACE

CREEK

PREVIOUS PD BOUNDARY
ADDED PD BOUNDARY

EXISTING 15' GARLAND
POWER AND LIGHT

EASEMENT

EXISTING 10'
PEDESTRIAN AND

UTILITY EASEMENT

LANDSCAPE BUFFER

6' EXTERIOR
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

EX
H

IBIT C



REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, December 9, 2024

3b. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Prime Data Centers / Munsch
Hardt Kopf & Harr, requesting approval of 1) an expansion of the existing Planned
Development district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to include additional area
(currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary to primarily accommodate a
change in the driveway location 2) an updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and
Electric Substations. The site is located at the Northeast Corner of Arapaho Road and
Holford Road. (District 7) (File Z 24-37)

Ms. Nur provided a presentation and answered questions of the Plan Commission.

There was a question by the Commission regarding the traffic that this development
could potentially bring.

Staff clarified that this development would not produce an increase in traffic.

The applicant, Angela Hunt, 500 N. Akard St., Dallas, TX 75201, provided an overview
of the request and remained available for questions.

There was a question by the Commission regarding the future use of the corner of the
property once the construction is finished.

The applicant stated that the plans will be to speak with the City for potential uses down
the line once the development is finished.

Motion was made by Commissioner Abell to close the public hearing and approve the
application as presented. Seconded by Commissioner Rose. Motion carried: 9 Ayes, 0
Nays.



BOTELLO
RD

N
 S

H
IL

O
H

 R
D

A
R

R
O

W
C

R
E

S
T

 L
N

T
R

E
E

 T
O

P
 L

N

SW
IS

HER P
L

SW
O

R
D

D
R

YOUNGER CT

BISON
CT

G
LE

N
 V

IS
TA

 D
R

H
E

R
A

LD
 D

R

FANNIN
DR

LANCECREST DR

IVANRIDGE
LN

HOLF
ORD R

D

LACEW
OOD DR

WILD
OAK LN

WHISPERING

COVE CIR

HEDGEWAY CIR

STONECASTLE DR

APPALACHIA DR

R
E

M
IN

G
T

O
N

 D
R

STETSON DR

B
R

O
K

E
N

B
O

W
LN

ARROWCREST CT

SPRING CREEK DR

G
R

A
N

D
 V

ILLA
 LN

W
H

IT
E

 S
W

A
N

 D
R

ARAPAHO RD

LAWRENCE DR

H
E

A
R

T
H

C
R

E
S

T
 D

R

SPRING CREEK W
Y

KNIGHTHOOD LN

N
A

A
M

A
N

FO
R

E
S

T

B
LV

D

N G
ARLA

ND
AV

E

2121

2133

2108

5633

4210

1855

2013

2113

2242

2214

5617

2101

2205
2122

2105

2222 2109

4801
2226

5553

2202

2117

2234 2218

5649

2142

2118

2106

2001

2122

2375

5613

2005

2226

2117

2238

2101

2105

1879

2125
21022109

2014

2102

2009

2209

5621

2101

2225
2237

4218

5609

5625

2233

2256

2013

2129

4214

1887

1770

2260

2201

5601

5549

5605

2114

2110

4206

5545

2102

2009

1880

4847

2118

1787

56375653

1901

2350

2266

4851

2302

1801

2301

1802

2359

2367
2387

2383

2379
2371

2363

4501

2255

2000

4585

4565
4545

44554445

4475
4375

4355

4285

4295

1961

2055
2059

2063

4595

2067

1965

1969

1975

1979

2065

2061

2057

2120
2124

2112
2108 2104

2121
2117

2113
2109

2105

4105
4109

4113
4117

2126
2130

2134
2142

4116
4112

4108

4121
4125

4129
4133

4137
4141

4145

4130
41384134

4125

4133

2157
2153

2149
2145

2176
2180

2165
2169

2173
2177

2181
2185

2193
2197

2002

2020

2040

2060

2102

¯
Northeast Corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

INDICATES
NOTIFICATION AREAZONING MAP Z 24-37

0 1,000500 ft



Zoning Response Case Comments

Z 24-37 Prime Data Centers/Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr. The applicant 
proposes an expansion of the existing Planned Development (PD) District 23-47 
for a Data Center and Electric Substations to the northeast corner of Arapaho 
Road and Holford Road, currently zoned Agricultural (AG) District. The site is 
located at 2000 Holford Road. (District 7)

Andrea 
Rodriguez

Against

3601 Bluesage

Garland

Texas

United States

75040

12/19/2024 
1:06:07 AM

Case Number PC Hearing Date CC Hearing Date Planner Name

Project DescriptionDecember 9, 2024Z 24-37 January 7, 2025 Matthew Wolverton

Page 1 of 1

Outside of Notification Area



City Council Meeting
January 7, 2025

Approval of 1) An expansion of the existing Planned Development
district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to include additional
area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the PD boundary to
primarily accommodate a change in the driveway location 2) An
updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and Electric Substations.

Z 24-37



CASE INFORMATION

Location:            Northeast Corner of Arapaho Road and Holford Road

Applicant:          Prime Data Centers / Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr

Owner:               Woodlands of Spring Creek LP

Acreage:             54.54 acres

Zoning:              Planned Development (PD) District 00-39 and Agricultural

Z 24-37



CITYWIDE LOCATION MAP

Z 24-37



CITYWIDE LOCATION
MAP

LOCATION MAP

Z 24-37



PHOTOS

Z 24-37



PHOTOS

Z 24-37



Z 24-37

PREVIOUS CONCEPT PLAN



UPDATED CONCEPT PLAN

Z 24-37



STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff is recommending:
§Approval of

1) An expansion of the existing Planned Development
district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to include
additional area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the
PD boundary;
2) An updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and
Electric Substations.

Z 24-37



PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission is recommending:
§Approval of

1) An expansion of the existing Planned Development
district 23-47 for Community Office (CO) uses to include
additional area (currently zoned Agricultural) within the
PD boundary;
2) An updated Concept Plan for a Data Center and
Electric Substations.

Z 24-37





GARLAND

PLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 6. b.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: Z 24-18 Tarmandeep Toor (District 7)
Submitted By: Matthew Wolverton, Development Planner
REQUEST
Hold a public hearing and consider approval of 1) a Change in Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for
Neighborhood Services (NS) Uses and Convenience Store Use, 2) A Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Fuel
Pumps, Retail Use, and 3) a Concept Plan for a Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps, Retail and shopping center.

LOCATION
4151 North Garland Avenue

OWNER
Michael Holigan

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On March 10, 2025, the Plan Commission, by a vote of nine (9) to zero (0), recommended denial of 1) a Change in
Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for Neighborhood Services (NS) Uses and Convenience Store Use,
2) A Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, and 3) a Concept Plan for a Convenience Store with
Fuel Pumps, Retail and shopping center.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
While the proposed Convenience Store and shopping center may be consistent with the Future Land Use Map, the
Fuel Pumps are not. In addition, a lack of pedestrian-oriented conditions for the development is inconsistent with the
comprehensive plan. Staff recommends denial of 1) a Change in Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for
Neighborhood Services (NS) Uses, 2) A Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, and 3) a
Concept Plan for a Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps, Retail and shopping center.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently an undeveloped tract of land within Planned Development (PD) District 16-35. The
Planned Development District was created with six (6) different tracts allowing for a variety of uses. This site is tract
three (3) which only allows Elder Care-Independent Living. The applicant is proposing a rezoning which will allow for
Fuel Pumps, Retail and an attached shopping center with multiple suites containing a convenience store. The
Convenience Store Use is allowed by SUP within the Neighborhood Services (NS) District and the applicant is
requesting it to be allowed by right.

SITE DATA
The subject site is a 2.66-acre undeveloped tract of land and has approximately 460 linear feet of frontage along
North Garland Avenue and 223 curvilinear feet along Arapaho Road. The site can be accessed from one point along
North Garland Avenue and one point along Arapaho Road.



USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 16-35. This site's base zoning is Multi-Family-1 (MF-1). The
multifamily district is an attached residential district intended to promote stable, quality, attached-occupancy
residential development in livable, sustainable, and compact residential communities at a maximum density of
eighteen dwelling units per acre. The principal allowed land uses include low-rise to mid-rise multiple-family dwelling
structures that are renter-occupied or owner-occupied (as in condominiums). Recreational, religious, health, and
educational uses normally located to serve residential areas are also allowed in this district. This district should be
located adjacent to an arterial or collector street and can serve as a buffer between nonresidential development or
heavy automobile traffic and medium-density or low-density residential development. This district accommodates a
variety of housing types including triplexes, quadplexes, apartments, and condominiums. The MF-1 district, as
mentioned in certain sections of the Garland Development Code, is intended to accommodate standard multifamily
development.

CONSIDERATIONS
Planned Development 

1. The applicant is requesting the base zoning to be changed to the Neighborhood Services (NS) District.
2. In addition to this, the applicant is requesting the Convenience Store Use to be allowed by right, and the Fuel

Pumps, Retail to be allowed by Specific Use Provision (SUP).

Specific Use Provision

1. The applicant is requesting the SUP for Fuel Pumps, Retail to be twenty-five (25) years. The SUP time period
guide recommends a period of 20-25 years.

Conditions
The Plan Commission and City Council may attach conditions to the Specific Use Provision to mitigate adverse
effects of the proposed use and to carry out the intent of this Section. 

Conditions may include any, or a combination, of the following:

1. Limitation of building size or height;
2. Increased open space;
3. Limitations on impervious surfaces;
4. Enhanced loading and parking requirements;
5. Additional landscaping, sidewalk, screening, vehicular access and parking improvements;
6. Placement or orientation of buildings and entryways;
7. Buffer yards, landscaping and screening;
8. Signage restrictions and design;
9. Limitation on operation or function of proposed use (for example, hours of operation);

10. Limitation on the effective time period for an SUP; or
11. Any other criteria to safeguard and protect public health, safety, and welfare.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Urban Neighborhoods for the subject site.
Urban neighborhoods are higher density residential developments that may utilize mixed-use integrated into the
surrounding area.

It is envisioned that retail centers such as these promote a mix of uses which promote placemaking and desirable
destinations, built around the pedestrian. This location is meant to be integrated into the larger urban Planned
Development (PD) District. Although the proposed Convenience Store and Neighborhood Services uses are in
general conformance with the comprehensive plan, the Fuel Pumps are not. The site's layout also lacks pedestrian-
oriented design elements. These elements include locating the building toward the front of the property with parking in
the back along with additional landscaping located along street frontages. Such placemaking principles encourage
walkability and increase perceived safety for residents, making the proposed zoning change somewhat inconsistent
with the comprehensive plan.

 



COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The property to the North is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 16-13 for Mixed Uses, lying within tract two
(2), containing a Multi-Family development. The property to the East is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 20-
37 for Mixed Uses, lying within tract four (4), containing a Multi-Family development. The properties to the West are
zoned Agricultural District (AG), Planned Development (PD) District 86-74, and Planned Development (PD) District
92-33 containing an empty lot, townhomes, and a day care facility. The property to the South is zoned Agricultural
(AG) District and contains Winters Park. The surrounding uses are largely restaurant or retail. The Convenience
Store and shopping center is generally compatible with the surrounding area's zoning and land use but lacks
pedestrian oriented conditions. The Fuel Pumps are not compatible with the surrounding area.

Attachments
Z 24-18 Location Map
Z 24-18 PD & SUP Conditions
Z 24-18 Concept Plan
Z 24-18 R&M
Z 24-18 Responses
Z 24-18 Staff Presentation



39143916

P D  8 3 - 1 3 7P D  8 3 - 1 3 7
39183920

P D  8 3 - 1 3 7P D  8 3 - 1 3 7

394639443942394039383936393439323930

FANNIN DR
PIC

KE
TT

 PL

SWORD DR

LA
NC

EC
RE

ST
 DR

SW
ISH

ER
 PL

ARAPAHO RD

STONECASTLE DR

N GARLAND AV
E

BR
OKE

N
BO

W LN

SPRING CREEK WY
WHIT

E S
WAN

 DR

BRANDON

PARK DR

SP
RI

NG
 C

RE
EK

 D
R

P D  0 3 - 5 1P D  0 3 - 5 1 P D  8 3 - 1 3 7P D  8 3 - 1 3 7

P D  9 2 - 3 3P D  9 2 - 3 3

S F - 7S F - 7

P D  8 4 - 8 0P D  8 4 - 8 0
N ON O

N ON OC RC R

P DP D
8 3 - 28 3 - 2

P D  8 4 - 7 7P D  8 4 - 7 7

A GA G

A GA G

P DP D
8 6 - 7 48 6 - 7 4

A GA G

P D  2 0 - 3 7P D  2 0 - 3 7

P DP D
2 1 - 0 12 1 - 0 1

P D  2 1 - 0 1P D  2 1 - 0 1

P D  1 6 - 1 3P D  1 6 - 1 3

P DP D
1 6 - 3 51 6 - 3 5

P D  2 2 - 8 0P D  2 2 - 8 0P D  2 2 - 8 0P D  2 2 - 8 0

4005

3928

4009

3931

3924

4013

3947

4098

3935

1601

39433951

4105

4096

3959

1966

3939

4001

3955

3900

3929

1950

1902

4501

44554445

4475

4375

4355

4285

4295

1961

1965

1969

1975

1979

4151

ZONING MAP Z 24-18
¯

0 175 350 Feet 1 inch = 306 feet

4151 North Garland Avenue

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST



EXHIBIT B

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS

ZONING FILE Z 24-18

4151 North Garland Avenue

[Requested by the Applicant]

I. Statement of Purpose: The  purpose  of  this  Planned
Development  (PD)  is  to  allow  and  regulate  the
development  of  a  Convenience  Store  with  Fuel  Pumps,
Retail Use.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not
affect any regulation found in the Garland Development
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption
of  this  ordinance,  except  as  specifically  provided
herein.

III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Neighborhood
Services (NS) District as set forth in Chapter 2 of the
Garland Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included
by  reference  and  shall  apply,  except  as  otherwise
specified by this ordinance.

IV. Development Plans:

Concept  Plan:  Development  shall  be  in  general
conformance with the Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In
the event there is conflict between the approved Concept
Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the Specific
Regulations shall apply.

V. Specific Conditions:

A. Permitted Uses: In addition to the uses permitted within
the  Neighborhood  Services  (NS)  District,  Convenience
Store  Use  shall  be  allowed  by  right,  and  Fuel  Pumps,
Retail allowed by SUP.

B. Concept  Plan:  The  site  layout,  building  placement,
parking, walking paths, and other development proposed
shall  be  in  general  conformance  with  the  approved
Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C.



EXHIBIT B

SPECIFIC USE PROVISION

ZONING FILE Z 24-18

4151 North Garland Avenue

[Requested by the Applicant]

I. Statement of Purpose:  The purpose of this Specific Use
Provision  is  to  allow  a  Convenience  Store  with  Fuel
Pumps, Retail Use.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Specific Use Provision shall
not  affect  any  regulation  found  in  the  Garland
Development Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior
to adoption of this ordinance, except as specifically
provided herein.

III. General Regulations:    All  regulations  of  the
Neighborhood  Services  (NS)  District  as  set  forth  in
Chapter  2  of  the  Garland  Development  Code  Ordinance
6773, are included by reference and shall apply, except
as otherwise specified by this ordinance.

IV. Abandonment:   In the event the land use for which this
Specific  Use  Provision  was  granted  (“Land  Use”)  is
abandoned, the SUP and all rights to the Land Use are
automatically terminated, and the premises must be used
in conformance with the PD, GDC, federal, and state law.

For  the  purposes  of  this  Specific  Use  Provision,
Abandonment is any of the following acts:

A. A failure to apply for a site or building permit on
the premises, where applicable, within 180 days of the
effective date of this SUP;

B. A failure to obtain a certificate of occupancy for the
Land use within 730 days of the effective date of this
SUP;

C. A failure to commence operating the Land Use on the
premises  within  90  days  of  receiving  a  final
certificate of occupancy for the Land Use;

D. Discontinuance of the Land Use for a period of 180
days;



EXHIBIT B

E. Applying  for,  and  receiving,  a  new  Certificate  of
Occupancy for a use other than the Land Use; or

F. Operating a use on the premises, whether as a primary
or secondary use, that is not allowed within the PD
District, by the GDC, or by state or federal law.

The termination of utilities on the premises for a period
of  180  calendar  days  is  prima  facie  evidence  of
abandonment and the owner shall have the burden to prove
that the Land Use has not been abandoned.

V. Specific Regulations:

Time Period:  The Specific Use Provision shall have a
twenty-five (25) year time period.





REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, March 10, 2025

2c. DENIED Consideration of the application of Tarmandeep Toor, Hold requesting
approval of 1) a Change in Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for
Neighborhood Services (NS) Uses and Convenience Store Use, 2) A Specific Use
Provision (SUP) for a Fuel Pumps, Retail Use, and 3) a Concept Plan for a
Convenience Store with Fuel Pumps, Retail and shopping center. The site is located at
4151 North Garland Avenue. (District 7) (File Z 24-18)

Planner II, Matthew Wolverton, presented the request to the Commission and remained
available for questions.

The applicant, Tarmandeep Toor, 4221 N. Garland Ave., Garland, TX 75040, provided
an overview of the request and remained available for questions.

The Commission asked several questions regarding signage and gas pumps.

Motion was made by Commissioner Rose to deny the application as presented.
Seconded by Commissioner Jenkins. Motion carried: 9 Ayes, 0 Nays.



PD 

-
1:::3 

PD 03-51 11-'-..-L-,,__-P,D 8:3 -1=
r"L,.--,------r-

1

----,O 
\8 5 IJ .7 43

8
1

fs 

---:-_:._i� �
ii � 3955

NO 

0 175 350 Feet 

ZONING MAP Z 24-18 I I I 

4151 North Garland Avenue 

4375 

4545 

4501 

4445 4455

4475 

4355 

1601 

4585 

a: 0 
" 
w w a: 
u 
Cl z 
o' 
Q. 
(/) 

- INDICATES AREA OINDICATES 
OF REQUEST NOTIFICATION AREA 

X







Zoning Response Case Comments 
Case Number 

Z 24-18 

Barbara Graves 
Imagination 
Station 
Childcare Cente 
3/11/2025 
10:25:28 PM 

Barbara Graves 
Imagination 
Station 
Childcare Cente 
3/11/2025 
10:25:28 PM 

PC Hearing Date 

March 10, 2025 

CC Hearing Date 

April 1,2025 

Planner Name 

Matthew Wolverton 

Z 24-18 Tarmandeep Toor. The applicant proposes a Planned Development 
(PD) District & Specific Use Provision (SUP) for a Shopping Center and Fuel 
Pumps, Retail. The site is located at 4151 North Garland Avenue. (District 7) 

Against 

1966 Arapaho Rd 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

imaginationstationtx@verizon.net 

9424144971 

This intersection is already heavily congested . Our property customers 
already have trouble getting out on Arapaho and we have no light to turn in 
front of the school and have to U-turn to get into our building. This is not a 
good spot to exit or enter on that corner safely. 

Against 

1966 Arapaho Rd 

Garland 

Texas 

United States 

75044 

i mag inationstationtx@verizon.net 

9424144971 

This intersection is already heavily congested. Our property customers 
already have trouble getting out on Arapaho and we have no light to turn in 
front of the school and have to U-turn to get into our building. This is not a 
good spot to exit or enter on that corner safely. 

Page 1 of 1 



City Council Meeting
April 1, 2025



2

Z 24-18

Request
The applicant requests a Change in Zoning to a Planned Development (PD) District for Neighborhood

Services (NS) Uses and a convenience store and a Specific Use Provision (SUP) for Fuel Pumps,

Retail Use on a property zoned Planned Development District 16-35 (PD 16-35) with a base zoning

district of Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) District.



3

Case Information

Location: 4151 North Garland Avenue

Applicant: Tarmandeep Toor

Owner: Michael Holigan

Acreage: 2.66 Acres

Zoning: PD 16-35 Multi-Family-1 (MF-1) District (base

zoning)



4

Location Map



5

Comprehensive Plan



6

Site Photos
4151 North Garland Ave

View of the subject site from Arapaho Road View from the subject site looking Northeast up
North Garland Avenue



7

Site Photos
4151 North Garland Ave

View from the subject site looking Southwest
down North Garland Avenue

View from the subject site looking Northwest up
Arapaho Road



8

Concept Plan



9

Planned Development

Applicant Request: Planned Development (PD) District Amendment to allow

Neighborhood Services (NS) District Uses & Convenience Store Use by right.



10

Specific Use Provision

Applicant Request: Twenty-Five (25) year Specific Use Provision for a Fuel Pumps,

Retail Use.

The SUP Time Period Guide recommends 20-25 years.



11

Recommendations

Staff Recommendation: Denial

Plan Commission Recommendation: Denial by a nine (9) to zero (0) vote.



Response Letters



Thank You
Questions?



GARLAND

PLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 6. c.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: Z 25-04 Bobtown Enterprises Inc. and David Najafi (District 3)
Submitted By: Elisa Morales, Administrative Services Supervisor
REQUEST
Approval of a Change in Zoning from Community Office (CO) to Community Retail (CR)

LOCATION
429 & 455 East interstate Highway 30

OWNER
David Najafi 

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On March 10, 2025, the Plan Commission, by a unanimous vote, recommended denial of a change to Community
Retail (CR) district, but approval of a change to Neighborhood Services (NS) district. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends a zoning change to Neighborhood Services (NS) instead of Community Retail (CR). NS would
invite an array of uses that encompasses the vision of the Comprehensive Plan as well as the surrounding zoning
and uses. Since NS is a less intensive and more restrictive district than CR, the zoning change can be approved for
that district without additional notifications.

Additionally, the City Council has recently approved an amendment to the Land Use Chart to allow restaurant uses
by right in the NS district. With that change, the NS district is the most appropriate for this site per staff's evaluation.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently zoned Community Office (CO). The property owner wishes to have the zoning
changed to Community Retail to allow a broader range of uses in his unleased units. 

The property was previously zoned Freeway District (FW) before being changed to Community Office (CO) in 2015
when the GDC was adopted. CO restricts more intense uses that may have otherwise be permitted in the FW District
given the property's proximity to Interstate Highway 30. 

The site did not begin construction until 2017 and is a general retail space with vacant units for lease.  

SITE DATA
The subject site is 3.792 acres and is accessed from Bobtown Road and Interstate I-30 Service Road. This strip
center type development currently has a few businesses in operation, such as a donut shop and a dental office.



USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The site is zoned Community Office (CO). The Community Office (CO) district is intended to create an appropriate
setting for medium and higher intensity office and professional uses. The district may be used as a transition district
between low intensity office/retail uses and more intense uses. It is also generally appropriate along major
transportation corridors. However, the CO district is generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density residential
districts. Examples of allowed uses in a CO district are professional offices, campus-style corporate office,
research, and assembly operations that may be large in scale but that are conducted wholly within a building(s) with
very limited or no outside storage. The Community Office district is intended to serve the larger community and
region with professional office services and job opportunities. Where feasible, provision must be made for pedestrian
access and convenience by connecting directly with sidewalks and trails to and from neighborhoods, shopping areas,
and other employment centers.

CONSIDERATIONS
Zoning: 

1. The request is a traditional rezoning without the formation of a Planned Development (PD) District. These
requests do not require Concept Plan approval to commence or direct development. Development is dependent
on the standards set forth by the Garland Development Code (GDC) and the goals and policies established
within the Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan. This Change in Zoning is not intended to restrict uses or
secure development performances beyond what is permitted within the proposed zoning district and the GDC.
Accordingly, the GDC requires careful consideration as to how closely the proposed district follows the policies
of the Envision Garland 2030 Comprehensive Plan, and to what degree the rezoning will affect surrounding and
future development.
 

2. In the event the Zoning Change request is approved, uses allowed in Community Retail (CR) will have to obtain
a Certificate of Occupancy to operate. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Employment Centers with a Business Center
subcategory for the subject site. Employment centers are areas with concentrated options for high-quality, business
environments within the city. Employment Centers support major employers and suppliers, along with providing
services and amenities for employees.

Business centers provide a cluster of business offices and/or low-impact industry, including campus-type
development, that cumulatively employ large numbers of people.  Operations within this development type occur
internal to buildings resulting in minimal negative impacts (sound, air, traffic, outdoor lighting, storage, etc.) and are
compatible with adjacent development types in architecture, character, scale, and intensity. 

Business centers are generally located at intersections of major and/or secondary arterial streets or significant
transit areas (bus/rail).  Proximity and access to residential areas are encouraged to reduce travel times to
employment. Site design addresses function and visual aesthetics providing appropriate buffering at gateway
corridors, between adjacent developments, and for residential neighborhoods.

Business centers range in scale and intensity based on the surrounding vicinity and may consist of one or more
buildings.  This development type includes a variety of primary and secondary uses, including compatible residential
uses, that support the business employment sector.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The properties to the North are zoned MF-1 and contain a Multi-Family Development. The properties to the East are
zoned PD 97-16 and PD 97-51. PD 97-16 contains a Restaurant with Drive Through and PD 97-51 Contains a
Convenience Store with Retail Fuel Pumps. The property to the west is zoned Community Office and is a vacant lot.
Finally, the properties to the South are across Interstate Highway 30 and contain vacant land as well as a
Convenience Store with Retail Fuel Pumps both zoned Community Office (CO). 

The surrounding uses are Multifamily, Retail and Commercial uses. Community Retail allows for more intensive uses
which are not compatible with the surrounding area or future land use projections in the Comprehensive Plan.
Automobile Leasing/Rental and Laundry-Self Service (Laundromat) are examples of uses allowed in CR that would
not be allowed in NS. 



AttachmentsZ 25-04 Location Map
Z 25-04 R&M
Z 25-04 Responses
Z 25-04 Staff Presentation



B
O

B
TO

W
N

 R
D

R
O

A
N

 R
D

W
IS

E
 LN

E I30 SERVICE RD N

E I30 SERVICE RD S
E I30 FRWYE I30 FRWY

E I30 ROAN OFF S

EASTON MEADOWS DR

E I30 ON N

P D  9 7 - 5 1P D  9 7 - 5 1

P D  9 7 - 1 6P D  9 7 - 1 6

P D  9 6 - 5 2P D  9 6 - 5 2

S  0 7 - 3 2S  0 7 - 3 2

M F - 1M F - 1

S  0 4 - 5 9S  0 4 - 5 9

C OC O

P D  1 7 - 2 6P D  1 7 - 2 6

P D  1 9 - 2 2P D  1 9 - 2 2

S  2 2 - 3 3S  2 2 - 3 3

P D  2 3 - 2 7P D  2 3 - 2 7
P D / S
2 2 - 7 8
P D / S
2 2 - 7 8

S  1 5 - 0 3S  1 5 - 0 3

3705

3614

3802

4147

3826

3702

4001

3618

4151
3830

4025

4015
501

3605

3609

3601

3718

430

444

3809

4101
3701

440

3805

450

3818

3710 3822
3602

4109

4141

3814

375

429

3902

455

4054

3785

5356

375

375

375
375

375
375

375
375
375
375
375

375375
375375

375375

375
375

375
375
375

375

375
375

375

375 375
375
375
375
375
375
375
375
375
375

375 375
375

375

3826

4001
4001

430
430

Zoning Map 25-04 INDICATES AREA
OF REQUEST

429 & 455 E Interstate Highway 30

¯
0 400200 Feet



REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, March 10, 2025

3b. APPROVED Consideration of the application of Bobtown Enterprises Inc. and
David Najafi, requesting approval of a Change in Zoning from Community Office (CO)
to Community Retail (CR). (District 3) (File Z 25-04)

Planner I, David Jones, presented the request to the Commission and remained
available for questions.

The applicant, Tracy Ford Spillman, 15305 Dallas Parkway, Addison, TX 75001,
remained available for questions.

Motion was made by Commissioner Paris to close the public hearing and approve the
application as presented to change the zoning to Neighborhood Services (NS).
Seconded by Commissioner Dalton. Motion carried: 9 Ayes, 0 Nays.





































City Council Meeting
April 1, 2025



2

Z 25-04

Request
A zoning change from Community Office (CO) District to Community Retail (CR) District.



3

Case Information

Location: 429 & 455 East Interstate Highway 30

Applicant: David Najafi

Owner: David Najafi

Lot Size : 3.792 acres

Zoning: Community Office (CO) District



Location Map



5

Comprehensive Plan

Title
This paragraph actually is a good place for title
description

 This development type includes a
variety of primary and secondary uses,
including compatible residential uses,
that support the business employment
sector.



Site Photos
429 & 455 East I-30



Site Photos
429 & 455 East I-30



8

Recommendations

Staff Recommendation: Approval for NS zoning district

Plan Commission Recommendation: Approval for NS zoning district by a nine (9)

to zero (0) vote.



Response Letters



Thank You
Questions?



GARLAND

PLANNING REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 6. d.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Item Title: Z 24-41 Development Engineering Consultants, LLC (District 1)
REQUEST
Hold a public hearing and consider approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development (PD) District 00-39 for a
Landscape Nursery (retail) Use and 2) a Concept Plan for a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use.

LOCATION
4400 President George Bush Highway

OWNER
BOKF, National Association, d/b/a Bank of Texas, Trustee Oliver, Dewey Mayor Foundation

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
On February 24, 2025, the Plan Commission, by a vote of five (5) to four (4), recommended denial of a Planned
Development (PD) Amendment and Concept Plan for a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use on a property zoned Planned
Development (PD) District 00-39.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Staff does not have a recommendation on this item.  The use may be compatible with the general vision of the
comprehensive plan and surrounding areas, but it does not contribute positively toward achieving the City's goal of
creating a destination for this area.

BACKGROUND
The subject property is currently an undeveloped tract of land within Planned Development (PD) District 00-39. The
Planned Development allows for a variety of other uses that are permitted in the Community Retail (CR) District. It
does not currently allow a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use.

SITE DATA
The subject site is a four (4.00) acres undeveloped tract of land and has approximately 440 linear feet of frontage
along North President George Bush Highway and 525 curvilinear feet along River Oaks Parkway. The site can be
accessed from one point along North President George Bush Highway and one point along River Oaks Parkway.

USE OF PROPERTY UNDER CURRENT ZONING
The site is zoned Planned Development (PD) District 00-39. This site's base zoning is Community Retail (CR). The
Community Retail (CR) District is intended to accommodate a variety of retail, service, and business establishments
that may or may not be designed in a shopping center configuration. The district may be used as a transition district
between lower intensity retail or office uses and more intense uses. A Community Retail (CR) District is generally
appropriate along major transportation corridors but is generally not appropriate in proximity to low-density residential
districts without significant buffering and screening features. An example of allowed use in a CR district is a retail
shopping area that may be large in scale with very limited or no outside storage. Traffic generated by uses in a
Community Retail (CR) District must be focused onto the major thoroughfare network. Development in a Community
Retail (CR) District may not be designed in a manner that increases traffic through residential areas.



CONSIDERATIONS
Planned Development:

1. The applicant is requesting the Landscape Nursery (retail) Use to be permitted by right as the use is not
currently allowed in Planned Development (PD) District 00-39.

2. Under Planned Development (PD) District 00-39, three access points onto River Oaks Parkway are allowed. If
approved and developed, this site would have the second access point on River Oaks.

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
The Future Land Use Map of the Envision Garland Plan recommends Community Centers for the subject site.
Community centers are areas with compact development, primarily non-residential, which serves nearby
neighborhoods with a mix of uses that include retail, office, multi-family, and entertainment.

It is envisioned that retail centers such as these promote high quality retail and service uses which promote
placemaking and desirable destinations. This is a prime location for Garland with access and visibility from President
George Bush Highway, which is why, it is important to enable highly desirable uses on this property to meet the city's
vision. While the proposed use may not be inconsistent with the general vision of the comprehensive plan, it does not
have the potential to create the activity center that this critical corridor is envisioned to have.

COMPATIBILITY OF REQUEST WITH SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES
The properties to the North are zoned Planned Development (PD) District 86-83/87-43 and contain a Single-Family-7
subdivision. The properties to the East and West will remain Planned Development (PD) District 00-39 and vacant.
Finally, the properties to the South are across President George Bush Highway and contain vacant land zoned
Planned Development (PD) District 23-17 and 95-2. The surrounding uses are largely restaurant or retail. The
Landscape Nursery (retail) is generally compatible with the surrounding areas.

Attachments
Z 24-41 Location Map
Z 24-41 PD Conditions
Z 24-41 Concept Plan
Z 24-41 R&M
Z 24-41 Staff Presentation



E
BRAND

RD

S
H

O
R

T
LN

N
GEORGE BUSH

HWY E
N

GEORGE
BUSH

SERVICE
RD

W

RANGER
DR

GEORGE BUSH
BRAND

OFF E

PALM DESERT DR
RIVER

OAKS
PKW

Y

N
GEORGE BUSH

HWY W

N
GEORGE

BUSH

SERVICE
RD

E

P D  9 7 - 0 9P D  9 7 - 0 9

P D  8 2 - 1 1 5P D  8 2 - 1 1 5

P D
2 4 - 1 9

P D
2 4 - 1 9

P D
0 3 - 3 9

P D
0 3 - 3 9

P D  0 0 - 3 9P D  0 0 - 3 9

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3P D  8 6 - 8 3 / 8 7 - 4 3

P D  9 4 - 1 2P D  9 4 - 1 2

P D  2 3 - 1 7P D  2 3 - 1 7

P D  8 7 - 1P D  8 7 - 1

P D  9 5 - 2P D  9 5 - 2

A GA G

P D  1 5 - 0 9P D  1 5 - 0 9

530

502

529

501

533 601

602

510
526

509

534522

505 517

506

4502

518

521 525513

514

4400

4802

4812

534

4822

¯
4400 N PRESIDENT GEORGE BUSH HWY

INDICATES AREA
OF REQUESTZONING MAP Z 24-41

0 500250 ft



EXHIBIT B

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT CONDITIONS
REQUESTED BY THE APPLICANT

ZONING FILE Z 24-41

4400 North President George Bush Turnpike

I. Statement of Purpose: The purpose of this Planned
Development (PD) is to allow and regulate the
development of a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use.

II. Statement of Effect:  This Planned Development shall not
affect any regulation found in the Garland Development
Code, Ordinance No. 6773, as amended prior to adoption
of this ordinance, except as specifically provided
herein.

III. General Regulations: All regulations of the Community
Retail (CR) District and Planned Development (PD)
District 00-39 as set forth in Chapter 2 of the Garland
Development Code, Ordinance 6773, are included by
reference and shall apply, except as otherwise specified
by this ordinance.

IV. Development Plans:

Concept Plan: Development shall be in general
conformance with the Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C. In
the event there is conflict between the approved Concept
Plan and the Specific Regulations below, the Specific
Regulations shall apply.

V. Specific Conditions:

A. Permitted Use: In addition to the uses permitted within
Planned Development (PD) District 00-39, Landscape
Nursery (retail) Use shall be permitted by right.

B. Concept Plan: The site layout, building placement,
parking, walking paths, and other development proposed
shall be in general conformance with the approved
Concept Plan labeled Exhibit C.





REPORT & MINUTES

P.C. Meeting, February 24, 2025

2b. DENIED Consideration of the application of Development Engineering
Consultants, LLC., requesting approval of 1) an Amendment to Planned Development
(PD) District 00-39 for a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use and 2) a Concept Plan for a
Landscape Nursery (retail) Use. The site is located at 4400 North President George
Bush Highway. (District 3) (File Z 24-41)

Planner II, Matthew Wolverton, presented the request to the Commission and remained
available for questions.

The Civil Engineer, Daniel Stewart, 5300 Town & Country Blvd., Ste. 150, Frisco, TX
75034, provided an overview of the request and remained available for questions.

The Commission asked several questions regarding other potential uses of the land and
the hours of operation.

Motion was made by Commissioner Jenkins to close the public hearing. Seconded by
Commissioner Paris. Motion carried: 9 Ayes, 0 Nays.

There was discussion by the Commission whether the proposed development would be
the best use of the land.

Motion was made by Commissioner Jenkins to deny the application as presented.
Seconded by Commissioner Dalton. Motion carried: 5 Ayes, 4 Nays with
Commissioners Duckworth, Rose, Abell and Jones in opposition.



City Council Meeting
March 18, 2025



2

Z 24-41

Request
The applicant requests a Planned Development Amendment for a Landscape Nursery (retail) Use on

a property zoned Planned Development District 00-39 (PD 00-39) with a base zoning district of

Community Retail District.



3

Case Information
Location: near 4400 President George Bush Highway

Applicant: Development Engineering Consultants,

LLC.

Owner: BOKF, National Association, d/b/a Bank of

Texas, Trustee Oliver, Dewey Mayor Foundation

Acreage: 4 Acres

Zoning: PD 00-39 Community Retail (CR) District (base

zoning)



4

Location Map



5

Comprehensive Plan



6

Site Photos
Near 4400 George Bush Highway

View of the subject site from N President George
Bush Hwy

View from the subject site looking West down N
President George Bush Hwy



7

Site Photos
Near 4400 George Bush Highway

View from the subject site looking East down N
President George Bush Hwy

View of the subject site from River Oaks Parkway



8

Concept Plan



9

PD Amendment

Applicant Request: Planned Development (PD) District Amendment to allow a

Landscape Nursery (retail) Use.



10

Recommendations

Staff Recommendation: Analysis

PC Recommendation: Denial



Response Letters



Thank You
Questions?



GARLAND
CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT

  
City Council Regular Session 7.        
Meeting Date: 04/01/2025  
Title: Boards and Commissions Appointment
Submitted By: Jennifer Stubbs, City Secretary
Issue/Summary
Councilmember Dylan Hedrick

Kathleen Gardner, PhD, Senior Citizens Advisory Commission

Background
N/A

Consideration / Recommendation
Approval of the appointment as presented. 

Attachments
Kathleen Gardner-Senior Citizens



Page 1 of 4 Revised 5/2024 

Application for City of Garland Boards and Commissions 
First Name:      Last Name: 

Address: Apt./Suite: 

City: State: Zip Code: 

Phone (preferred): Phone (alt): 

Dallas County Voter Registration Number (or Date of Birth): 

Have you ever been convicted of a Class A Misdemeanor or a Felony (Yes or No)? 

Length of Garland residency (in years)? Length of Garland residency (in years)? 

Email address:  

Do you use, or have you ever used, any of the following: 

☐ Facebook  ☐Twitter  ☐Instagram  ☐LinkedIn  ☐Nextdoor  ☐TikTok

Please list up to three Boards and Commission in order of interest (see complete list on pages 3-4):

1st    2nd Choice:    3rd Choice:

Please list any experience that qualifies you to serve in the areas you have indicated. 

If you have previously served on a City Board or Commission, please specify and list dates of service. 

List civic or community projects with which you have been involved. 

What is your educational background? 

Referred by: District: 

 

  

Kathleen V Gardner, PhD

4122 Mayflower Drive

Garland TX 75043

No

10+ years 10+ years

LinkedIn

Senior Citizens Advisory Committee

text message from Carol Cooper 4

I planned on being in the MLK Parade this year but Gwen and the Fit2Live group were not able to get a
van so that some participants could ride instead of walk the parade route. Other than that I have not
been involved in a community project.

I have participated at the Sr. Center since 2019 in exercise classes, dance lessons, the holiday parties, hallway
'yard' sales, guitar lessons, weight room. After 'covid' I came to Gale Fields/Sr. Center and continue in exercise,
van 'day' trips, holiday parties and luncheons, weight room etc. I have met lots of people and made many friends
among the seniors and know what they/we like, want, appreciate, need, etc. I know the employees and they know
me. Carol Cooper is a fellow exercise buddy and Angela Harrison is our Fit 2Live teacher. I have had my finger on
the pulse of the older generation for several years and I believe I would be an asset to the Commission. Thank you
for the opportunity to apply.

Univ. of NE 1970-73
Univ. of FL 1973-76 BAA
OK St Univ 1980 M.S.
OK St Univ 1989 Ph D

none



Page 2 of 4 Revised 5/2024 

Disclosure Form 

For Ordinance Boards and Commission Applicants 
First Name:     Last Name:  

Title: 

Spouse: 

Minor Children or Dependents: 

1. Identify by name and address each business entity in which you, your spouse or any of your minor
children or dependents have a substantial interest.

Business entity: Means a sole proprietorship, partnership, firm, corporation, holding company, joint-
stock company, receivership, trust or any other entity recognized by law. 

Substantial interest means: (a) the ownership of 10 percent or more of the voting stock or shares of the 
business entity; (b) the ownership of either 10 percent or more or $5,000 or more of the fair market 
value of the business entity: or (c) funds received from the business entity exceed 10 percent of the 
recipient’s gross income for the previous year.  

2. Identify (by street address, legal or lot and block description) all real property located within Garland
owned by you through beneficial ownership, partnership, joint ownership or through corporate
ownership of corporation in which you have an interest of one percent or more. You must also include
all real property leased by you or held by you with a right of first refusal.

Return completed Boards and Commissions Application and Disclosure Form to: 

City of Garland  
City Secretary’s Office 
PO Box 469002 
Garland, TX 75046-9002 

Signature: Date: 03/09/25 2:19 PM

Kathleen V Gardner, PhD

4122 Mayflower Drive 75043...totally owned, fully paid for and lived in by me, Kathleen V
Gardner, single woman.

none


	Agenda
	AI 10841 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_March 18, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES

	AI 10785 GP&L Brand Road to Ben Davis 138kV Transmission Line Rebuild Engineering Services
	AI 10787 GP&L Wynn Joyce Pole Replacement Construction Services
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI 10788 GP&L King Mountain to Grandfalls 345kV Transmission Line Materials
	AI 10789 GP&L Mesa View 345kV Transmission Line Materials
	AI 10790 GP&L and TMPA Vegetation Management
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	0504-25 Bid Recap 2 of 2 - V2.pdf
	Sheet1

	0504-25 Bid Recap 2 of 2 - V2 PDF.pdf
	Sheet1

	0504-25 Bid Recap 1 of 2 - V2 PDF.pdf
	Sheet1


	AI 10791 GP&L Fairdale to Walnut 138kV Transmission Line Rebuild Engineering Services
	AI 10792 GP&L Centerville to McCree 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI 10793 GP&L College to Brand Road 138kV Transmission Line Upgrade
	       ATT_Bid Recap
	Sheet1

	AI 10621 Ordinance Adopting FY 2024-25 Annual Operating Budget Amendment No. 1
	       ATT_Ordinance Adopting 2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - City Council Staff Report - FY 2024-25 Budget Amendment No. 1
	2024-25 BA no. 1 Staff Report
	Agenda Item

	10619_Attachment_A_–_Schedule_of_Open_Encumbrances_being_Rolled_Forward
	10619_Attachment_B_–_Schedule_of_Proposed_Amendments_by_Fund

	AI 10661 Grant Disbursement Agreement - Garland Housing Finance Corporation
	       ATT_GHFC 2025 Grant Agreement
	AI 10794 Garland Development Code (GDC) Amendment (25-04)
	       ATT_Ordinance Drone Delivery 
	       ATT_Exhibit A Drone Delivery Land Use Matrix 
	       ATT_Drone Amendment RandM 
	AI 10395 Z 24-37 Prime Data Centers / Munsch Hardt Kopf & Harr (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-37 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 24-37 PD Conditions 
	CC Exhibits.pdf
	1 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	1 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN


	24-02-16_OSTU_DFW02 Garland_02303967
	7 PRELIMINARY OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN
	8 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN - EAST
	9 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN - WEST

	231211_Prime DFW02-01 Garland Elevations
	Pages from Screening - Illustrative Exhibit
	1 PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C_SITE_02303967 (NO PONDS)-SITE


	7 PRELIMINARY OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	7 PRELIMINARY OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN




	       ATT_Z 24-37 Concept Plan 
	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN


	       ATT_Z 24-37 RandM
	       ATT_Z 24-37 Responses
	       ATT_Z 24-37 Staff Presentation 
	AI 10783 Z 24-18 Tarmandeep Toor (District 7)
	       ATT_Z 24-18 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 24-18 PD and SUP Conditions 
	       ATT_Z 24-18 Concept Plan 
	       ATT_Z 24-18 RandM
	       ATT_Z 24-18 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 24-18 Staff Presentation 
	AI 10784 Z 25-04 Bobtown Enterprises Inc. and David Najafi (District 3)
	       ATT_Z 25-04 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 25-04 RandM
	       ATT_Z 25-04 Responses 
	       ATT_Z 25-04 Staff Presentation 
	AI 10710 Z 24-41 Development Engineering Consultants, LLC (District 1)
	       ATT_Z 24-41 Location Map 
	       ATT_Z 24-41 PD Conditions 
	       ATT_Z 24-41 Concept Plan 
	       ATT_Z 24-41 RandM 
	       ATT_Z 24-41 Staff Presentation 
	AI 10840 Boards and Commissions Appointment
	       ATT_Kathleen Gardner-Senior Citizens

